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EENAREEABZER

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TONG KAI LAP Chairman and Chief Strategic Officer

Aged 50, graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1982 with a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong is
a licensed representative for Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the Securities and Future Ordinance, an
associate director of Oriental Patron Asia Limited and the past
president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui. Mr. Tong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Tong is brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Chun Keung, the
ex-director of the Company and Dr. Wong Chun Loong, the Chief
Creative Officer of comics and animations division of the Company.
Mr. Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

ZHENG HAO JIANG Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Aged 42, graduated in the law department of Beijing University in
1990. Mr. Zheng has over 12 years experience in Beijing in the areas
of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis management
and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing Director of China
Automobile Dealers Association. Mr. Zheng is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is a founding member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr. Zheng
joined the Group in October 2006.

ZHAO XIAO DONG Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer
Aged 41, graduated in the Information Technology Department of

Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990. He has over 12
years experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management

of luxury goods in Beijing. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in September
2008.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ZHANG SI JIAN

Aged 44, is a Managing Director of Sequoia Capital China focusing
on growth capital investments. Prior to joining Sequoia Capital
China in 2007, he worked with Baring Private Equity Asia in Hong
Kong and Shanghai, and Doughty Hanson in London. Prior to
joining private equity, he worked for Deutsche Bank in its Investment
Banking division where he advised international companies in their
IPO, block trade, debt and convertible bond offerings. He has a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
and a Master Degree of Science from University of Minnesota and a
Master Degree of Business Administration from The Wharton School
of The University of Pennsylvania.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 51, is the Vice Chairman of National Resources Securities
Limited. Mr. Choy has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu Putian
Telecommunications Cable Company Limited, Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited and China Mandarin Holdings Limited,
all are companies listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Choy is also the Chairman of the
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, committee member of Society
of Registered Financial Planner Limited, fellow member of Institute
of Financial Accountants, Fellow Certified Financial Strategist of
Hong Kong Institute of Investors, fellow member of the Institute of
Compliance Officer, member of Shantou Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee, honorary president of Shantou Overseas

Friendship and committee member of Rotary Club Kowloon West.
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EENAREEABZER

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 56, holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over 29
years’ experience. Mr. Lam is independent non-executive director of
Wing Lee Holdings Limited and Same Time Holdings Limited, both
are companies listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and
a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Lam is currently a member of Election Committee,
member of Yuen Long District Council, member of Yuen Long
District Fight Crime Committee, a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories, member of Appeal Board Panel, Smoking (Public Health)
(Amendment) Ordinance, member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal
Tribunal Panel and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages.

LEE KANG BOR, THOMAS

Aged 56, is an executive director and chief executive officer of Man
Sang Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit and remuneration committee of CIG Yangtze
Ports PLC whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is a member of the Society of Trust
and Estate Practitioners, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Chartered Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee holds

a bachelor’'s and master’s degrees in laws from the University of
London and was called to the Bar of the Lincoln’s Inn of United
Kingdom. He served as President of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong from 1999 to 2002, and is currently Deputy President of the
Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association and Vice President of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

SENIOR MANAGEMENTS

Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 43, is the President of the car distributorship division and
watch distributorship division of the Group. Mr. Qi has over 15 years
experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi joined the Group in June 2008. He is
directors of Beijing Shou Ying Tong Shang Trading and Commercial
Limited (formerly known as Beijing Bin Li Group Limited). Mr. Qi is
a Standing Director of China Automobile Dealers Association. He
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Dr. WONG CHUN LOONG

Aged 60, alias Mr. Wong Yuk Long, the founder of Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited. Dr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in local
comics industry, is considered as one of the most influential comic
artists, a pioneer in the comics industry in Hong Kong. Dr. Wong
is the Chairman of Hong Kong Comics and Animation Federation
Limited, Visiting Professor of Beijing Film Academy- Animation
Academy, Hononary Visiting Professor of Sichuan University and
Honourable Professor of Taiwan Ling Tung University. Dr. Wong was
also awarded “World Outstanding Chinese Award” confessed by the
World Outstanding Charity Foundation and obtained an Honorary
Doctoral Degree by the University of New Castle (USA). Dr. Wong is
the Chief Creative Officer of the comics and animations division of
the Group responsible for the overall strategy in comic titles creation
and animation development. Dr. Wong is brother-in-law of Mr. Tong
Kai Lap, the Chairman of the Company and brother of Mr. Wong
Chun Keung, the ex-director of the Company.

LEUNG KWOK NING

Aged 48, is the Deputy General Manager of the car distributorship
division of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 27 years of experience in
managing the automobile aftersales service businesses and sales
management particularly for Bentley since 2003. Mr. Leung joined

the Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales
of Bentley and aftersales service.
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EENNREEBAEZER

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

HO SIU WAH

Aged 40, is the Deputy General Manager of the car distributorship
division of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 10 years of experience in
management sales of automobiles. Mr. Ho joined the Group in June
2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales of Lamborghini
and Rolls-Royce.

GUO YING LINDA

Aged 42, graduated from Shanghai College of Air Force and
Politics in 1990. Ms. Guo also received Master of Engineering
Management from the BeiHang University (formerly known as
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics). Ms. Guo has
over 10 years experience in media operation and management
which launched various media projects in Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou respectively. Ms. Guo joined the Group in April 2006 and
is responsible for comics and animations business.

CHAN KA KIT Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Aged 35, graduated from The City University of Hong Kong with
Bachelor of Art (Hons) in Accountancy in 1997 and has over 13
years of working experience in auditing and accounting in Hong
Kong and People’s Republic of China. Prior to joining the Company,
he has worked for an international audit firm for more than seven
years and a pharmaceutical group as financial controller for three
years. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountant (UK). He joined the Group in January 2008.
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Chairman’s Statement

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 of
approximately HK$1,219.1 million represented a significant increase
of approximately 99.4% compared to approximately HK$611.5
million recorded in the corresponding period of last year. The
significant increase in turnover was attributable to the encouraging
performance of luxury goods division that a profit of HK$113.0
million was resulted for the year ended 31 March 2010, as compared
with a net loss of approximately HK$190.0 million for the last
financial year.

At the year end date, the Group maintained a net cash position
with cash at banks and in hand of approximately HK$174.7
million (2009: HK$71.6 million), short-term bank borrowings of
approximately HK$17.7 million (2009: HK$13.4 million and other
short-term borrowings of HK$20.0 million) and convertible notes of
approximately HK$65.0 million (2009: HK$183.7 million). The Group
had sufficient financial resources and will continue to finance its
business development by internal resources and borrowings.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2010 of HKO0.3 cent per share (2009: Nil),
which together with the interim dividend of HKO.5 cent per share
(2009: HK1.0 cent per share) make a total dividend of HKO0.8 cent
per share for the year end of 31 March 2010 (2009: HK1.0 cent
per share). The total dividend amounted to approximately HK$21.5
million (2009: HK$17.9 million) for the year ended 31 March 2010.
The final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to be held on 29 July 2010 and payable on
19 August 2010 if it is approved.
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FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Automobile Distributorships

During the year, 178 Bentley automobiles, 33 Lamborghini
automobiles and 27 Rolls-Royce automobiles were sold in Beijing.

Watch Distributorships

During the year, the Group has acquired the distributorships of
DeWitt and Parmigiani and delLaCour watches. 57 pieces, 68
pieces, 31 pieces and 1 piece of watches of Richard Mille, DeWitt,
Parmigiani and deLaCour were sold since then and up to 31 March
2010.

Jewellery Distributorships

During the year, the Group has acquired the distributorships
of Boucheron and Buccellati of which 60 pieces of Boucheron
jewelleries were sold.

Fine Wines Distributorship

The Group has acquired the distribution right of Bordeaux fine wines
in December 2009. During the year, 22,158 bottles of fine wines
including 420 bottles of Petrus were sold.

Comics and Animations Development

During the year, the Group published and sold 10 local Chinese
comic books on a weekly or bi-weekly basis and approximately 20
Japanese comic books on a monthly basis. The Group also granted
comic books licensing to overseas publishers to translate comic
books into different languages.

Sub-contracting works on animations productions of around 100
episodes with around 3,000 minutes have been produced during the

year.
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FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

Revenue generated from comics and animations development
segment decreased by 8.7% to approximately HK$139.1 million, the
decrease was due to the sharp increase in the printing and paper
costs during the year.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group has 610 (2009: 632) employees.
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to the profit
or loss amounted to approximately HK$67.7 million for the year
(2009: HK$70.1 million). All permanent employees were under the
remuneration policy of fixed monthly salary with discretionary bonus.

There has been no change to the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 7 October 2002. No new share options
were granted during the current year. No share option was exercised
during the year and there were no outstanding share options
granted to directors, employees, consultants, advisors, customers,
shareholders and business associates as at 31 March 2010 (2009:
Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2010 were approximately
HK$1,185.0 million (2009: HK$879.2 million) which were financed
by the owners’ equity and total liabilities of approximately HK$869.8
million (2009: HK$575.5 million) and HK$311.1 million (2009:
HK$300.2 million) respectively.

The Directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing future
investment opportunities in suitable business ventures.

The Group had limited exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates and its borrowings, bank balances and cash were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”).
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FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, convertible notes with principal amount of HK$198.0
million were converted into 900 million new ordinary shares of
HK$0.002 each at conversion price of HK$0.22 per share.

The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total borrowings over
the owners’ equity was approximately 9.5% as at 31 March 2010
(2009: 37.7%).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB
and the cost of production and purchase are mainly denominated
in HK$ and RMB. The Group is not exposed to any other material
foreign currency exchange risk.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2010, bank deposits of the Group with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$11.3 million (2009: HK$5.4 million)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AND PROSPECT

Financial Review

While many countries around the world experienced downturns
stemmed from financial tsunami in year 2009, the PRC was relatively
immune from it, with “feel good” sentiment spread throughout the
country. High-end shoppers in China fuelled sales growth in 2009
as the global economy helped to forge a new class of wealthy
consumers in the PRC. Statistics showed that not only the number
of wealthy people has been growing fast in the PRC, but that their
willingness to spend on big-ticket items is also on the rise, driven by
an appetite for status as well as the comfort and trappings of luxury
products. This is reflected in the performance of our luxury goods

division.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group is reporting strong profit growth in its annual earnings
thanks to better-than-expected performance by the luxury goods
business. As a result, the Board issued a positive profit alert on
13 April 2010 based on a preliminary assessment of the financial
position of the Group. According to the assessment, the Group
would record a significant improvement in profit in the second half of
the financial year ended 31 March 2010, compared with a net profit
of approximately HK$35.7 million reported in the interim result for the
six months ended 30 September 2009. Therefore, the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 recorded
a significant turnaround compared with a net loss of approximately
HK$190.0 million in the previous financial year, due largely to the
encouraging performance of the luxury goods division.

China’s Luxury Goods Market

Research reports published by authorities, investment banks and
global research houses have pointed towards a booming luxury
goods market in China. According to the blue paper released by
the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in Beijing on China’s
commercial development from 2009 to 2010, China will become the
world’s biggest market for luxury goods in five years. China’s luxury

goods market is currently the world’s second largest, just behind
the United States. The market in China was valued at US$9.4 billion
at the end of 2009, which accounts for 27.5% of the world’s luxury
goods market. It is forecasted to reach US$14.6 billion by the end of
2015, which would make it the largest in the World. (Source: “China
to Be World’s Biggest Luxury Goods Market in Five Years: Blue
Paper”, Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republic of China)
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In addition, Boston Consulting Group released a study at the
CEIBS 2nd Prestige Brands Forum 2010 held in Shanghai on 27
March 2010 with even more optimistic predictions about China’s
luxury goods market. It projects China’s luxury spending to amount
to RMB248 billion in 2015. (Source: China Daily, “Half of luxury
goods bought as presents”). According to the 2010 Hurun Wealth
Report, China has a rapidly growing number of rich people. It
said 875,000 people have personal wealth of more than RMB10
million, an increase of 6.1% from a year ago. Beijing is home to
the highest number of China’s rich with 151,000 millionaires, while
Guangdong is second and Shanghai third. (Source: 2010 Hurun
Wealth Report, The Hurun Research Institute, 2010). All these figures
are encouraging to the Group as it continues to tap into the massive
luxury goods market in the PRC with substantial growth potential.

Automobile Distributorships

The Group is pleased to report higher revenue of ultra-luxury cars
(Rolls-Royce, Bentley and Lamborghini) during this financial year.
Bentley outperformed with a sales record of 178 units, representing
an increase of 75% compared with 102 units from the previous
financial year. Bentley Beijing is ranked 4th worldwide in 2009
(ranked 10th worldwide in 2008) among 148 global distributorships
as announced in the 2010 Dealer Business Conference — China
Region held on 3 March 2010 in Istanbul. Lamborghini recorded a
27% increase in total cars sold during this financial year from the
previous financial year.

In contrast, Rolls-Royce sales were down by 13% in total cars sold
during this financial year due to the 6-month remodeling process of

trimming of The Rolls-Royce PHANTOM model to meet the criteria of
the China’s limousine licensing requirement.
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The Group is pleased to report that it completed the transfer of the
Rolls-Royce distributorship from our agent, Beijing Ying Shang Tong
Trading Development Limited to Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited
in January 2010. Since the transfer, the Group is in a position to
issue invoices for Rolls-Royce sales on its own and record such
sales as revenues. Encouragingly, income from provision of after-
sales services continued to sky-rocket during this financial year
and became a high-growth income driver for the Group. Revenue
recorded a threefold increase to HK$41.0 million compared with
HK$11.3 million in the previous year.

The Board is pleased to report a profit guarantee of not less than
HK$65 million by Mr. Qi Jian Hong, our single largest shareholder,
for the year ended 31 December 2009 is again well-honored by the
luxury car distributorships business.

Watch Distributorships

During the year, another super deluxe Swiss branded watch model
was added to our watch portfolio. We have been appointed the
exclusive global distributor of the BiTourbillon model of another top-
notch Swiss watch, deLaCour, for a period of 10 years beginning
on 1 January 2010. The Group is responsible for the marketing,
distribution, pricing and sale of this niche Swiss watch model around
the world, with particular focus on the PRC, Hong Kong, and Macau.
BiTourbillon is the world’s first dual differential tourbillion watch
allowing both local and Greenwich Mean Time (GTM) to be read.
BiTourbillon watches were conceived as a demonstration of watch

making virtuosity and stringent quality, as well as process controls
for the creation of each unique masterpiece.
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During this financial year, pre-tax profit of watch division leapt
four times compared with the previous financial year. We have
recorded satisfactory sales of our newly acquired super brands,
Parmigiani and deLaCour BiTourbillon, at end of 2009 and beginning
of 2010 respectively. Our other super-branded watch DeWitt also
outperformed and contributed around half of the sector’s total
income during this financial year with the sale of 57 watches. In April
2010, the world’s biggest DeWitt flagship store located in Legendale
Hotel, Wangfujing in Beijing was launched and is scheduled to be in
full operation in mid-2010. In addition, the Richard Mille and DeWitt
watch counters in Dalian have just been added to our retailing
operations on 23 May 2010.

Jewellery Distributorships

In October 2009, the Group acquired Boucheron and commenced
its distributorship operation at Plaza 66 in Shanghai, and has
reported segmental revenue over HK$2 million. One Boucheron
flagship store in Beijing and one complimentary store in Shanghai are
currently under construction in full speed and expected to open in
the second half of this year. These two stores will also add impetus
to our sales of Boucheron products.

To honor our promise in our previous interim report, the Group is
actively seeking more top-tier branded jewelry to join our jewelry
brand alliance. We are pleased to announce the addition of a
renowned ltalian brand “Federico Buccellati” in January 2010. The
Group was appointed as the exclusive distributor of the brand in the
PRC and is entitled to use the trademarks of “Federico Buccellati”
and “Mastro Paragon Coppella”, the intellectual property rights
owned by Federico Buccellati. The term of this distributorship is
for a period of five years and to be renewed for an additional three
years thereafter. The Group will set up two to three Buccellati stores,
including one flagship store in Beijing on or before 31 December
2011.
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Fine Wines Distributorship

With the aim to becoming the leading luxury goods distributor in
the PRC, the Group strives to diversify its product portfolio. Taking
advantage of the rising popularity of red wines in the PRC, the
Group has formed a cohesive partnership with GROUPE DUCLQOT in
December 2009 (renamed as DUCLOT EXPORT in January 2010),
a renowned French fine wines group, to be an approved dealer of
its fine wines, including Petrus which is regarded as the king of
Bordeaux fine wines, in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong and Macau).
The term of this cohesive partnership is for a period of two years
and subject to renewal upon expiry. DUCLOT EXPORT will support
us in the site selection of wine cellar and storage facilities as well as
staff training, marketing and promotional activities and education of
customers in the PRC towards Bordeaux fine wines. The partnership
with DUCLOT EXPORT is strategically important for our business
as it represents a major leap forward to kick-start our fine wines
business and supports the expansion of our luxury brand empire in
the PRC. We find it especially encouraging that the segment revenue
of the fine wines business reached approximately HK$40 million in
three months since the start of the partnership in December 2009.
The Group will invest in the construction of a cozy wine cellar and a
shop at a prime location in Beijing in the third quarter of 2010. With
these retailing establishment, we anticipate our fine wines business
will gain further momentum in the future.

Comics and Animations Business
During the financial year, the Group’s comics publication business

generated a pre-tax profit of approximately HK$14.0 million,
including a one-off perpetual disposal in the amount of approximately

HK$15.0 million of certain intellectual property rights of the comics
library while a loss of approximately HK$4.6 million before tax
relevant to the JDMM and its subsidiaries was recorded.
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Based on the unsatisfactory performance of JDMM and its
subsidiaries between April 2007 and September 2009, as well as
reasons mentioned in the Group’s announcement dated 12 March
2010, the Group has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase the Sale Shares and the Sale
Loan (the “Disposal”) at an aggregate consideration of HK$67.0
million. The net sale proceeds from the Disposal, after deducting
all related expenses, is expected to be approximately HK$66.5
million and are intended to be applied as the Group’s general
working capital and to fund the development of its luxury goods
business. During the Special General Meeting on 20 April 2010,
the ordinary resolution in relation to the Disposal was duly passed
by Independent Shareholders by way of poll. The Disposal of the
Group’s animation business was then completed on 27 April 2010.

Following the release of these annual results, the Board will also be
seriously considering the disposal of the comics publication business
due to its unsatisfactory performance in this financial year. An
invitation for tender to selective parties is expected to be undertaken
as soon as possible.

Looking Ahead

Looking ahead, the Group will move beyond its distributor role
and establish its position as a brand manager. We will focus on
nourishing and developing various brands in our portfolio by
enhancing their image and awareness, so as to generate profit
to our shareholders and boost our presence in luxury goods
distributorships. With our pool of experience and expertise in the
China market, we are confident the expansion plans for our various
unique brands will enable us to become the industry leader in the
foreseeable future.

Regarding the automobile dealerships, the Group is reasonably
optimistic that the global position of our dealerships will further
elevate in 2010.

As promised in my statement here during last financial year, the
Group will strive to branch out and expand our luxury brands

portfolio so as to sustain our pace of expansion in the long run.
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Acknowledgement

We would like to thank our dedicated team, board members and
staff members through the challenging and competitive global
environment during the year. Nevertheless, given the positive outlook
for the luxury goods market in the PRC as well as our vision, we are
confident that we will generate profitable returns to our shareholders
in the years to come.

Last but not least, we would like to welcome once again the second
and third largest shareholders of our Group, Sequoia and Och-Ziff.
Institutionalizing and broadening our shareholders’ base is one of the
main tasks that our Group will continue pursuing.

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2010
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”)
agrees that corporate governance practices are increasingly
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence.
Corporate governance requirements keep changing, therefore the
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that all practices can be met with legal and statutory
requirements throughout the year of 2009/2010, the Group has
complied with all applicable the Code Provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company has been in compliance with the Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive and four Non-
executive Directors whom three are independent as defined by
the Stock Exchange. The biographical details are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements” section.

The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing over one-third of the Board. At least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the Independent
Non-executive Directors have signed the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm
their independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three year.
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The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts and
major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s business
is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each
department. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate. The
Board members have access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role of
Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board,
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established and that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day business of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four Non-executive Directors of whom three are
independent. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director,
including the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every
three years. This means that the specific term of appointment of a

director cannot exceed three years.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating =
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 6 Board
meetings were held in 2009/2010.
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee

meetings during 2009/2010 is set out below:

Director

Executive Director
Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Wong Chun Keung
(resigned on 14 December 2009)
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (redesignated
as Executive Director on
1 September 2009)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Si Jian (appointed on
14 December 2009)

Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (redesignated
as Executive Director on
1 September 2009)

Independent Non-executive
Director

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
(Chairman of the Audit
Committee)

Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas

(Chairman of the Nomination
Committee)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditors for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its members include:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo,
has appropriate professional qualification in accounting and
extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior
management and auditors shall normally attend the meetings. The
Audit Committee held 3 meetings in 2009/2010 with satisfactory
attendance rate for the purpose of discharging the aforesaid duties.
The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2010 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and officers
by linking their compensation with performance and measured
it against corporate goals. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about their proposals
relating to remuneration of Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and two Executive Directors. Its members

include:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas
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Executive Director

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings in 2009/2010
to review and approve directors’ and senior managements’
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2009/2010 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Choy Sze
Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
member, assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.

During the year, appointment of Mr. Zhang Si Jian as new Director
is put to the full Board for approval. Thereafter, Mr. Zhang Si Jian as
the new Director is subject to election by shareholders at the next
general meeting after their appointments.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years and
automatically renewed for one year and are required to retire and
eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting of the Company

in every three year in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditors are appointed by resolution of the Annual
General Meeting and the Directors are authorised to fix their
remunerations for the auditing services. Grant Thornton was
appointed as the auditors of the Company until the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

The fee for annual audit provided by Grant Thornton for the year
ended 31 March 2010 amounted to HK$1.2 million (2009: HK$1.2
million).

The auditors have performed other non-auditing services during
the year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.15
million (2009: HK$0.4 million). The Audit Committee has considered
based on the policy developed by them in this regard and made
recommendations to the Board for these non-auditing services
conducted by our auditors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that activities of the Board are
efficient and effective by assisting the chairman to prepare agenda
for meeting and by preparing and disseminating Board papers to
the Directors and board committees in a timely and comprehensive
manner. With respect to the company secretarial function, the
company secretary maintains formal minutes for Board and other
meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making decisions.
The company secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
publication and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely dissemination

of announcements and information relating to the Group to the
market and ensuring that proper notifications are made of directors’
dealings in Securities of the Group.
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The company secretary also advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures that the
standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed
and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“the Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the financial year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer question on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. Shareholders have statutory rights to call
for extraordinary general meetings and put forward agenda items
for considerations by shareholders. Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must
be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put to vote at the
Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll. The chairman
of the Annual General Meeting will explain the detailed procedure
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the Annual General
Meeting.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,

notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for the assessment and management of risk. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and put in place policies
and procedures. The Company has not appointed an internal auditor.
The internal controls are monitored and reviewed regularly by
appropriate senior management so as to ensure that the categories
of risks are managed effectively.

The executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each business
in the division within the agreed strategies. Business plans and
budgets are prepared annually by the management of individual
businesses and subject to review and approval by the Board. The
Board is overall responsible for monitoring the operations of the
business within the Group. Monitoring activities include the review
and approval of business strategies, budgets, and plans, and the
setting of key business performance targets. When setting budget
and forecast, management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations and the Group’s finance department oversees
the Group’s cash position.

During the year, the Audit Committee and Board have reviewed
internal control of the Company. The Board considers that the
Group’s internal control system is satisfactory.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or revised HKFRSs which came into effect on 1 April 2008.
The accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out in the
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the notes to the
financial statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to
ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects in financial reporting.
The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial reporting

are set out on page 44 in the Independent Auditors’ Report.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements. Its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in (i) trading of luxury automobiles, watches and jewellery
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) (excluding Hong Kong
and Macau) and trading of five wines in the PRC; and (ii) comics and
animations development.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 53.6% and 80.8% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
46.

An interim dividend of HKO.5 cent per share amounting to
approximately HK$13,431,000 was paid to shareholders during the
year. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.3 cent per share amounting to approximately HK$8,059,000
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 52 and note 34 to the financial

statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$144,185,000 in surplus (2009: HK$105,647,000 in deficit).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$198,000,000 were converted into 900,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each at HK$0.22 per share of the
Company of which 270,000,000 shares were converted by Sparkle
Roll Holdings Limited and 630,000,000 shares were converted by
several independent investors.

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

One type of convertible notes of the Company were issued on 26
June 2008 (the “Type | CN”) upon completion of the acquisition of
the exclusive entitlements to all of the economic benefits derived
from the dealerships of Bentley cars, Lamborghini cars and Rolls-
Royce cars and rights to control, manage and operate Beijing Mei
He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited (“Mei He”) and Beijing De Te
Motors Trading Limited (“De Te”). The Type | CN were convertible
into shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.22 per share (subject
to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure changes) and matured
on 26 June 2010. The Type | CN bore interest on the outstanding
principal from the date of issue to the date of redemption or
conversion at a rate of 4% per annum payable in arrears semi-
annually. During the year, certain registered holders of the Type |
CN converted the Type | CN of an aggregate principal amount of
HK$198,000,000 into 900,000,000 ordinary shares.

Another type of convertible notes of the Company with principal
amount of HK$82.5 million were issued on 26 January 2010 for
cash (the “Type Il CN”) which were convertible into shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.55 per share (subject to pro-rata
adjustments on capital structure changes) and will be matured on 25
January 2015.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2010 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 172.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (redesignated as executive director
on 1 September 2009)

Mr. Wong Chun Keung (resigned on 14 December 2009)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (redesignated as executive director
on 1 September 2009)
Mr. Zhang Si Jian (appointed on 14 December 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas

In accordance with bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any director appointed during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are

eligible for re-election.
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No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the
period of two years and renewable for one year up to his retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Zheng Hao Jiang will retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-
election. In addition, pursuant to bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Si Jian was appointed as director during the
year and will hold office until the forthcoming general meeting. Mr.
Zhang Si Jian will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out in page 4 to page 8.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
NOTES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 March 2010, the interests of the directors and their associates WR_Z—ZF=F=+—H ZRBRARFBE
in the shares and convertible notes of the Company and its Z5H & EEG ([EHF LB ESEH])$E352
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by EmMEFE 2 & XMAR HIBE LT AAE
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures FHETEAXSHWEZESFRENE AR A M
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and ZEAHMAXZHAR AT ([BXAH)E &
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) ZBENEZE 2B S A THRARRQ T M EEE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors B Z D & Al is ZiEh A 2 ST
of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company RERABRBZIFR
Percentage of
Number of issued share
issued ordinary capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
BEERT (HEARARAERT
EEnA &6 ZERYE RAEB DL
Mr. Tong Kai Lap (“Mr. Tong”) Founder of discretionary trust 10,274,400 0.65%
(Note 1)
BRI EE ([EEED FHREFEIZA (Ht5E1)
Mr. Tong Beneficial owner 4,760,000 0.65%
(Note 1)
BEAE BB A (HM$5E1)
Mr. Tong (Note 2) Interest of spouse 2,651,466 0.65%
(Note 1)
B (RE2) iR sp s e (H$5E1)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner 10,640,000 0.40%

B ST e A&

BEamBEAA
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Notes:

0

Interest in the issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned
by Rapid Alert International Limited, a company controlled by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Tong is the founder. Accordingly, Mr.
Tong is deemed to be interested in these shares. The total interests of
issued shares of Mr. Tong are 17,585,866 shares.

Interest in the issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned by
Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Patricia, the spouse of Mr. Tong. Accordingly, Mr.
Tong is deemed to be interested in these securities.

The denominator used is 2,686,152,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2010.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the directors nor their associates has any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
convertible notes of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 March 2010.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002.

M EE -

RITRZBETROEZBELERE
S AZEREFATES 2 A FRapid Alert
International Limited B 25 # & ° B L - B AE
WRAERLERN T EEERZ - FEEAH
WH17,585,866M% B BT 2 s o

AITPRARZEBEITRMDESRELEEZRR
BEYRRtTERES Fl BEEREAR
M E B SRR S

FT A 5 & 52,686,152,8500 it 1 - BN =&
—EFE-A-t+-HZOBITROAER-

B EXRTX [ — B REBES R
“F-FEZAS -8 SEFARFZ
9 A LR AR A RS E AR R B2
FE AR - 16 AR 49 ok ] 48 R SR o
I SR

B

ZA/N
A

Al Z BT & (325181 )) IR IBEAR
—EE_HF+AEHBITZREERX

G LBB ERRBRRN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2010, the register of substantial shareholders WRZ-_Z—ZF=A=+—H ZARARE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO &H MEIEIEMIEI36KE B EFE 2T ER
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect REZMATR BT EXABEESETES Y
of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the #EzE4h FTHREBREMEARAR R FEEEAR
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the AIBZ/TIRAFRFTHES 2 HEERS:

Company:
Long position in the shares of the Company REQATARBZEHER
Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares
BERMEEEB g7 KRG EE
Substantial shareholders
FERRE
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”)  Beneficial owner 805,000,000
BEERARAR (BHEER]) ERBEEA
Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi”) (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation 805,000,000
Bk ([&EE]) (M) BEEHEERE
Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”) (Note 1) Interest of spouse 805,000,000
KREL ([Rx+]) (BEE1) fic (8 7 =
Mr. Daniel Saul Och Interest of controlled corporation 350,000,000
(Note 2)
Mr. Daniel Saul Och THEEEE 2w (MF3E2)
QOch-Ziff Capital Interest of controlled corporation 350,000,000
Management Group (Note 2)
LLC (“Och-Ziff Capital”)
Och-Ziff Capital THEESE 2 R (FEE2)

Management Group LLC
([ Och-Ziff Capital | )

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
R NN

21T
KREBDL
(Note 4)

(B3E4)

29.97%

29.97%

29.97%

13.03%

13.03%
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Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares the Company

R NN

2T

BRERBEEEB &6 R # B RAEB DL

(Note 4)

(HMt5E4)

OZ Management L.P. Investment manager 350,000,000 13.03%
(“OZ Management”) (Note 2)
0OZ Management L.P. BEKE (Htiz2)

([0Z Management | )

OZ Master Fund, Ltd. Beneficial owner 233,581,091 8.70%
(*OZ Master”) (Note 3) (Note 4)

OZ Master Fund, Ltd. Em#EEA (Htit4)
([OZ Master |) (#7£3)

Sequoia Capital China Beneficial owner 348,880,000 12.99%
Growth Fund I, L.P.

Sequoia Capital China BB A

Growth Fund I, L.P.

Notes: B
(1) SRHL is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi is (1) BFREBRAELEZEHAE 2 AF At
deemed to be beneficial holder of shares held by SRHL. Mrs. Zhu is BREWGRRREBRMAFRN 2B HA
wife of Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mrs. Zhu is deemed to be beneficial holders N REERBEFELZET F - KX LK
of shares held by SRHL and Mr. Qi. REABRKERERALEEMBERND cERRHE
/\ °

(2)  The number of shares interested including an interest in 150,000,000 (2)  ¥E&EREmEMEH (E2$5150,000,0008% A% {7

shares derived from a convertible note for a principal sum of %) KB A 5 /82,500,000 7T B 1T
HK$82,500,000 with an exercise price of HK$0.55 per share, upon full {8 R & R0.558 70 2 AT MR I - IR IR
conversion of which 150,000,000 shares will be allotted and issued. AR L - A B3 2 3%17150,000,0008%

Betn e
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(8)  OZ Master was a fund managed by OZ Management, Och-Ziff Holding
Corporation (“Och-Ziff Holding”) was the sole general partner of OZ
Management, and Och-Ziff Capital was in turn the sole shareholder
of Och-Ziff Holding. Mr Daniel Saul Och controlled approximately
78.02% of the voting power at general meetings of Och-Ziff Capital.
0OZ Management, OZ Holding, Och-Ziff Capital and Mr Daniel Saul Och
were deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
OZ Master and other funds under the SFO.

(4)  The number of shares interested including an interest in 100,109,091
shares derived from a convertible note for a principal sum of
HK$55,060,000 with an exercise price of HK$0.55 per share, upon full
conversion of which 100,109,091 shares will be allotted and issued.

(5)  The denominator used is 2,686,152,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date.

(6)  Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2010.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

0Z Master/ 1 0Z ManagementFT & 12 2 &
% ° Och-Ziff Holding Corporation ([Och-
Ziff Holding ]) A0Z ManagementZ M —
@A ¥ A MOch-Ziff Capitalfl] AOch-
Ziff Holdingz M — % %  Daniel Saul Och
% 4 A Och-Ziff CapitalZ fx B A& 124
H78.02%F RE-BEFFRBEKM -
0Z Management OZ Holding » Och-Ziff
Capital &z Daniel Saul Ochst £ 145 &7 0Z
Masterk 2 S F A2 ARG RMDTHEE

s

Ve fm ©

BEBEERROEE (821E100,109,091& &7
%) R B A ¢ 4% 555,060,000 T B 1T
FEAEBROSSE L AIRKREE  NEE
R E - PR % R E17100,109,091 %
A& A o

Fr A 5 £ 52,686,152,8500% P& 15 » BN & 14
ERAITHBZEBITRNDEHR-

BEXBEEN R_FT—-FTF=A
=T B BRARFAREZSZLAEGIE
3z REFE T BBRRECMATHE
TEEMATERARBDETRATHEER
FTRMZBEEIORE -

BEROSESF ZZH

B EX TR RE] — S EEIN RFERE
B AR A S AT A & A R AT 32
ERZE MEARBDEZTARRELRRF]
AT E MR A B8 2 B sk B 75 s o

BE HEIWEALQXFZzL™
& 5

ARBREERMMBEBRARRFARERBE -
HERBRIARBER ETES-
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted a share option share scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

BERBERE
AR ZARMAREREERLEEWE

EBERZIATE REARAARBRARR
Z R B IR 15 F B E # D o

B BUR

AEBEIZHMER IBFMEESR
WEZRR -BEKREDHE -

%

RABEEZFWN I EFWHEESEEEAR
NAIZELEE AARBRAILRMEHEE
BIEEE -

ARRIERA—ABREAEINEBDESTR
BEREER-

BYFHTES 2B IMRASE

RATBWE S B LIENITE S BRI

FHEMABESAEHEBLIEMER
ﬁf‘ﬁ"ﬁ%a RARARBEEE Y IENIT
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Service agreement with Mr. Wong

On 2 April 2009, the Company entered into a service agreement
(“Service Agreement”) with Mr. Wong, pursuant to which the
Company has appointed Mr. Wong, for a term commencing from
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010, as a creative writer for the comic
and animated cartoon of the Group and Mr. Wong shall provide
creative idea for the comic and animated cartoon related products
of the Group. Mr. Wong shall also be responsible for assisting the
promotion of the Group’s products to the public. Mr. Wong is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$280,000 together with a bonus calculated
based on the net profit of the comic and animated cartoon division
of the Group for the year. However, the total annual emoluments of
Mr. Wong under the Service Agreement shall be subject to an annual
cap of HK$5,000,000. For the year ended 31 March 2010, the total
annual emoluments and MPF paid by the Group for Mr. Wong for his
services as a comic and animated cartoon creative writer amounted
to HK$3,372,000.

RMO Agreement

On 22 February 2008, Mei He and De Te, indirect subsidiaries of
the Company, entered into an office rental, management fees and
office expenses agreement (‘RMO Agreement”) with Beijing Shou
Ying Tong Shang Trading and Commercial Limited (formerly known
as Beijing Ben Li Group Limited ) (“BJSYTS”), a company established
in the PRC which is controlled by Mr. Qi, for a term commencing
from 22 February 2008 to 31 December 2010, in respect of the
office rental, management fees and office expenses with BJSYTS.
The RMO Agreement will expire on 31 December 2010 upon which
it can be renewed by the parties thereto upon reaching mutual
agreement as to the terms of the new agreement. However, the
annual office rental, management fees and office expenses under the
RMO Agreement shall be subject to an annual cap of RMB1,100,000
for each of the two years ended 31 December 2010 respectively.
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the total rental charge paid
by Mei He and De Te to BJSYTS amounted to RMB960,000 or
approximately HK$1,091,000.

REBRER S
SR %k 2 RIS

R-ZEZAFEMA R AAGEFEELRT
R wE ([REHBZED Bt A2782
ZHEERLER T N\FOUA—HREZZ
—ZSF=ZA=F+—HALEEAEEZEER
BECARE EEERBEMGAEE
EERDEHBEERIEHAEER EX4E
NEBEBPRARKESEEAEEZER
| A A RWEE A % £280,000/% 7T - #E [
BEAEEEEREHRMCEEENFTE
ZACAL AT - RIBIRBHZE FEAEZLEEF
¥4 5E78 < F[E L R5,000,00078 TRl o
REBEE-Z-—FTF=-A=+—HLEFE K
SERELEIEREERDERIERE TR
M RBZ N TELEZFEBT N ERS
MRS /3,372,000 7T ©

MAZHEEEHR
RZEENEFE_AZ+=B AARBEW

BAREREESRKABEESBERAR ([
A RIEREFAEESBRAT ([1E5])
SR ERBHKERRAR (AL RER
EEARAA ([BIBG]  —MRFEKLZ
NAE ZRARBEERRESLAETS) ) FLif
NEHE EREBARNARAIIIUHAEH
EEBEHZE (IMAEHEERWE]) BA=
EENF_AZ+HBEZZE—ZEF+=
A=FT—HlIE - MAZHEEEHBZBR-Z
—EFF+ZA=+—RAKI ELBES T
THEGTER—MEREBATER - A
RBE-Z-ZTHE+-_A=+—HILMES
E-HAEHETERECFERLAEHE -
EREARRFARAICFELREAARKE
1,100,000t ZE—FEF=A=+—HIF
B EANEFENBBGZHEEY HAEA
A R #960,0007T 5 471,091,000/ 7T ©
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Beijing YST Agency Agreement

On 12 January 2009, De Te entered into an agency agreement
(“Beijing YST Agency Agreement”) with Beijing Ying Shang Tong
Trading Development Limited (“Beijing YST”) for a term from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009, with regard to the agency
fee payable by De Te in respect of the operations of the Rolls-
Royce distributorship, the rights of which are held by Beijing YST
until the actual transfer of the distributorship rights to De Te by
the grantors of the relevant dealerships. Upon entering into the
Beijing YST Agency Agreement, the rights to operate together
with the entitlements to the economic benefits of the Rolls-Royce
distributorship is vested in De Te. However, the annual agency fee
under the Beijing YST Agency Agreement shall be subject to an
annual cap of HK$1,000,000. For the period from 1 April 2009 to 31
March 2010, the total agency fee paid by the De Te to Beijing YST
amounted to approximately HK$93,000.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date are set
out in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs. Grant
Thornton, will be put at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

tREBEREHR
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRERBFERE

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at 4:00 p.m. ARQRBRRAFAEHETN T —ZF+
on 29 July 2010 at Dragon Room 3, The Hong Kong Bankers Club, AZ-+ A A TFUBEERESSHREE
43/F Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, Central, Hong Kong and a BEBTIT AE4AEEERITREFFERIE
notice of annual general meeting will be published and despatched in  £17 IR A F A 2@ &5 150 E 2 & T &

due course. &

On behalf of the Board REEZE

Tong Kai Lap *E

Chairman BRI

Hong Kong, 17 June 2010 BE _E-ZEFXATEA
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0 Grant Thornton
HE

To the members of Sparkle Roll Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statement of financial position as at
31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

17 June 2010
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Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FHET T T
Revenue Y 25 6 1,219,128 611,530
Cost of sales $HE A A (1,007,901) (627,678)
Gross profit/(loss) ER(E8) 211,227 (16,148)
Other income HAtb g A 7 28,320 48,436
Selling and distribution costs SHE R HK A (51,950) (29,060)
Administrative expenses THER (54,464) (39,645)
Other operating expenses Hih k=& A (2,687) (132,835)
Operating profit/(loss) R A, () 8 130,446 (169,252)
Finance costs mﬂ§ﬂ$ 9 (12,199) (16,472)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrAT SR AT R A,
(E#8) 118,247 (185,724)
Income tax expense Fr{S %t 2 10 (4,584) (6,031)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF, (FHE) 113,663 (191,755)
Other comprehensive income, BrFi B EMmEEUWA
net of tax
Exchange gains on translation of BMEBINEBI B IwER 2
financial statements of foreign P b UK &
operations 140 2,155
Total comprehensive income/ REEFEHAFEZERRA
(loss) for the year (E#8) 113,803 (189,600)
Profit/(loss) for the year TH AL EGEAREEER
attributable to: /(E8) .
Owners of the Company RRFIER A 13 113,016 (189,969)
Minority interests DB R s 647 (1,786)
113,663 (191,755)
Total comprehensive income/ 5 A LA EE U
(loss) attributable to: A (BR) :
Owners of the Company iN/NEIE T =N 113,156 (187,814)
Minority interests D EIR R R 647 (1,786)
113,803 (189,600)
Earnings/(loss) per share for FEREQXTEEA
profit/(loss) attributable to EEER (R 2
the owners of the Company SRERN,(FE)
during the year 15
— Basic — &K HK5.2 cents &1l HK(12.6) cents 7 1ll
~ Diluted — B8 HK4.6 cents %1l N/A T

1Lﬁ
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE—ZFF=HA=+—H Asat31 March 2010
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E FTHET TABIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e S 16 24,358 18,772
Goodwill Sk 18 597,334 597,334
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 19 5,454 9,778
627,146 625,884
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 131,421 86,761
Film rights % A hi A 21 10,494 11,746
Trade receivables e E 55k 22 87,263 22,161
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze  BEE IE&E’HQJE
receivables Wk IE 23 138,571 40,977
Amounts due from related companies & Uk 28 38 A 7 7 I8 24 3,825 13,813
Derivative financial instrument MmEEMIT A 25 - 698
Tax recoverable Al U [ %4 I8 231 231
Pledged bank deposits BRI FER 26 11,348 5,337
Cash at banks and in hand RITRIR B 26 174,700 71,564
557,853 253,288
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables e E HFIE 27 20,804 12,943
Receipts in advance, accrued WA B ERRE
charges and other payables b & 15t 3R IR 28 177,792 52,395
Amounts due to related parties &1~ BE 3 5 3R I8 29 136 10,601
Derivative financial instrument PTEEMT A 25 - 697
Provision for tax HBERIE 5,863 2,552
Borrowings BE 30 17,663 33,424
222,258 112,612
Net current assets REBEEZFE 335,595 140,676
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERABARG 962,741 766,560
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RZZE—FF=H=+—H Asat31 March 2010

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT T T
Non-current liabilities kFRBEMB
Receipts in advance and other TR A &
payables b &< 5RI8 28 5,209 3,919
Convertible notes GRS 31 64,951 183,668
Derivative financial instrument PTEEMTEA 25 18,469 =
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEAE 32 206 22
88,835 187,609
Net assets EEFE 873,906 578,951
EQUITY s
Share capital fi& 7 33 5,372 3,572
Reserves 1 856,371 571,922
Proposed final dividend BN E 14 8,059 -
Equity attributable to the RATREE AEEER
owners of the Company 869,802 575,494
Minority interests DERREDS 4,104 3,457
Total equity S 873,906 578,951

Tong Kai Lap
=5/ @
Director

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
%L
Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position
RZZE—ZFF=HA=+—H Asat31 March 2010
2010 2009
—E-2% —EERE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B =E FET TFAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries oGRS 17 77,000 41,000
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TEBGRIA 23 74 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG e 17 692,812 711,821
Pledged bank deposits BB IRITER 26 3,327 3,327
Cash at banks RITHET 26 34,647 39
730,860 715,187
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges EETE R 28 150 3,996
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B A Al 5138 17 - 21,148
Borrowings BE 30 - 7,500
150 32,644
Net current assets RBEEFE 730,710 682,543
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABERE 807,710 723,543
Non-current liabilities kRBEEB
Convertible notes Al 2 f% % 31 64,951 183,668
Derivative financial instrument PTESRIT A 25 18,469 -
83,420 183,668
Net assets EEFE 724,290 539,875
EQUITY Em
Share capital fi& 7% 33 5,372 3,572
Reserves i 34.2 710,859 536,303
Proposed final dividend BN E 14 8,059 -
Total equity =B 724,290 539,875
Tong Kai Lap Zheng Hao Jiang
BRI BREST
Director Director

EF EF
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TEREMERXR
Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FEx T
Cash flows from REXBCHEERE
operating activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSF AT (EE) 118,247 (185,724)
Adjustments for: LR T KA
Bank interest income RITF B A 7 (196) (530)
(Losses)/gains on disposals of HEWE - HaEREHE
property, plant and equipment 2 (E8) M 7,8 109 (18,178)
Write-back of deposits received B R 2 Wiz e 7 (1,166) =
Allowance for impairment of 52 5 Wi R (B
film rights 8 - 31,869
Allowance for impairment of goodwill 7 22 5l (B *E & 8 - 127,246
Allowance for impairment of other Hfthf= 2 & = Rk (B 22 1
intangible assets 8 - 4,885
Allowance for impairment of JE W IE R (B 24
receivables 8 1,625 403
Amortisation of film rights %2 R e 5 8 4,641 3,757
Amortisation of other intangible B b &
assets 8 6,124 2,715
Amortisation of prepaid lease A ERIEHE
payments 8 - 58
Depreciation of property, W BERZETE
plant and equipment 8 5,538 5,583
Fair value losses on derivative PTHESRTE
financial instruments NAEEE 8 588 111
Write-down of inventories to Wom &= 0 2 R)FE
net realisable value 8 1,975 46,814
Property, plant and equipment WS - e ES R
written-off 8 474 =
Reversal of write-down of REMBEFEE
inventories to net realisable value AR E(E 8 - (2,236)
Interest expenses MEER 9 12,199 16,472
Operating profit before working BEESEFE 2
capital changes 45 A 150,158 33,245
Increase in inventories FEEm (46,635) (51,481)
Increase in film rights 5 R KR AEIG N (3,389) (1,065)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 FRIFIE N (66,727) (2,340)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, Ze EHRIER
prepayments and other receivables H b fE U 518
(3Em) /@ (97,594) 134,044
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due & Uk f83E A 7] 718
from related companies B, (&) 9,988 (13,813)
Increase in trade payables BT & 5 FRIBIE N 7,861 2,863
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in TAYRIE BT E A R
advance, accrued charges and H th & < 5018
other payables 1 jJIJ/(?E A 132,156 (54,287)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due  FE{S B8 # )5 %18 R4 )~
to related parties N (10,465) 10,601
Cash generated from operations LEEEISIRE 75,353 57,767
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (Eﬁ)/ELi%E/’é%'J?%ﬁ (80) 301
Overseas tax paid B b B TE (1,009) (700)
Net cash generated from operating BTSN E F58
activities 74,264 57,368
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Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows(Continued)

BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FHERT T
Cash flows from RETE2EHERE
investing activities
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI IR 1T 7 5L 10 (6,011) (931)
Purchases of property, plant and BEEE S REE
equipment . (11,947) (12,043)
Purchases of other intangible assets ¥ & H £ & & (1,800) (1,000)
Acquisition of additional interests in U EEHT B A 7] 2 ZAIME RS
subsidiaries - (4,900)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi B B /&8 1 A 35 - (35,251)
Proceeds from disposals of property, H&E¥E  #E K
plant and equipment XA FTIS 3R 257 32,149
Interest received 2 A2 196 530
Net cash used in investing activites X & /E BN Fr IR & F 48 (19,305) (21,446)
Cash flows from METBH2EHESRE
financing activities ‘
New borrowings raised ILEE 17,663 33,423
Issue of convertible notes ?é‘ﬁ—Hﬁ‘HxT}F 82,500 =
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (33,423) (850)
Dividends paid to the Company’s MARD T ES AR 2
owners A% 2 (13,431) (17,862)
Bank interest paid =EN] ® 1THE (860) (329)
Interest on convertible notes paid EENEIEEYE ST IS (4,394) (7,826)
Net cash generated from financing BEFREMEREFHE
activities 48,055 6,556
Net increase in cash and ReRBESEEEREMS
cash equivalents | 103,014 42,478
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzBERREEE
beginning of the year HHE 71,563 27,092
Effect of foreign exchange rate R E) 2 LB FE
changes, net 123 1,993
Cash and cash equivalents FR2EEREESEE
at end of the year HE 174,700 71,563
Analysis of balances of cashand BE&RREZEEH
cash equivalents EEAN
Cash at banks and in hand RITRBSETT 174,700 71,564
Bank overdrafts RITE X 30 - (1)
Cash and cash equivalents FR2EEREESEE
at end of the year HHE 174,700 71,563

1"
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iR AR R BR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010
Minority Total
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company interests equity
ARAREARLRE SRBRER RisE
Retained
profits/ Proposed
Share Share Capital Special  Contributed Exchange Statutory ~ (accumulated final
capital premium* reserve* reserve* surplus* reserve* reserve* losses)* dividend Total
REEH/
B RiRE et BhRA LS AERfR FERE  (BiER) BREKERR Af

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FiEn FiEn TEn FEn TiEn FiEn T T T T TR T

(Note 34.1) (Note 34.1) (Note 34.1)
(Wisat)  (Missd) (Witasd)
At 1 April 2008 RZZZN\FBA-A 2172 213,630 = (36,810) 49,394 2,166 = 120,898 = 351,450 7436 358,886
Arising from acquisition of additional  EEKBARE ER
interests in subsidiaries Mgk - - - - - - - - - - (2,193 (2,193
Issue of shares upon acquisiton of  HEMEATRETRA
subsidiaries 800 219,200 - - - - - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Equity component in convertible HERELAE
notes issued upon acauisition of BIzuakEE
subsidiaries 08 - - 149,579 - - - - - - 149,579 - 149579
Issue of shares upon coversion of X AT RREEE
convertible notes ki 600 96,936 (37,3%) = = = = = = 60,141 = 60,141
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZETHE - - - - - - 3558 (3,559) - - - -
Interim dvidends paid for the period ~ HE=FEN\&
ended 30 September 2008 ARZTARLEHER
(Note 14) hERS (Kit1e) - - - - - - - (17,862) - (17,862) - (17,862)
Transactions with owners REFAETIRS 1,400 316,136 112,184 = = = 3,568 (21,420) - 411,868 2,193 409,665
Loss for the year AERER = - - - - - - (189,969) - (189,969) (1,786) (191,755)
Other comprehensive income A2ERA
- Exchange difference on -REENER
transiation of overseas operations  NEREBERZ
recognised directly in equity EXZE - - - - - 2,155 - - - 2,155 - 2,155
Total comprehensive REREH2ERN/
income/(oss) for the year (58) - - - - - 2,155 - (189,969) - (187,814) (1,786) (189,600)
At 31 March 2009 and
1 Apil 2009
’?%Mﬂ]ﬂ A 3572 529,766 112,184 (36,810) 49,394 4321 3,568 (90,491) = 575,494 3,457 578,951
Equity component in convertible BEATARREL
notes issued Bads - - 1,443 - - - - - - 1,443 - 1,443
Issue of shares upon conversion of ARG Z E
convertible notes B{1kf 1,800 300,016 (112,184) = = = = = - 189,632 - 189,632
Interim dividends paid for period HE-TINE
ended 30 September 2009 AA=TAILER
(Note 14) Effm SRS
(Hi3z14) - - - - - - - (13431) - (13431) - (13431)
Waiver of interest on convertible notes - —%REHEREA £
by & shareholder 278 - - 3508 - - - - - - 3,508 - 3508
Transactions with owners REBEAETZRS 1,800 300,016 (107,283) = = = = (18431) = 181,152 = 181,152
Proft for the year REFET = - - - - - - 13,016 - 113,016 647 113,663
Other comprehensive income A 2EBA
- Exchange difference on -HERNERINE
tranglation of overseas operations ~ EEEEAZEL
recognised directly in equity 28 - - - - - 140 - - - 140 - 140
Total comprehensive income AEREHRENA
forthe year = = = = s 140 = 113016 . 113,156 647 113,803
Reduction of share premium HRRHEE - 260,000) - - 260,000 - - - - - - -
Elimination of contributed surplus NEABREHEHER
against accumulated losses - - - - (206,327) - - 206,327 - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRRETER - - - - - - 1,770 (1,770 - - - -
Proposed final dividend for the year ~ BE-Z-%%=§
ended 31 March 2010 (Note 14) “t-ALLERZE
ARARE (Wie) - - - - (8,059) - - - 8059 - - -
At 31 March 2010 RZE-2F
=h=t-R 5312 569,782 4,951 (36,810) 95,008 4,461 5,328 213,651 8,059 869,802 4,104 873,906

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * NERFEEEEEAMBERARANNE
HK$856,371,000 (2009: HK$571,922,000) in the consolidated 4 % 1#856,371,0008 L (=TT N F :
statement of financial position. 571,922,000/ 7T ) °
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G Ed
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church House,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK?”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are the publications and distributions of comic
books, animation development and the distributorships of
luxury goods. The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong
and Macau (the “PRC”). In the current year, the Group has
commenced the distributorships of jewellery and fine wines in
the PRC.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 17 June
2010.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time all of
the new standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the year.

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs
had no material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared
and presented or on the Group’s accounting policies.
Accordingly, no adjustments on prior period are required.

1.

—REH

BFEEEER QAR ([AAR])R—
ARERESMAL2EBR AR E
+f f 9% = BE #o 4k & Clarendon House,
2 Church House, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda - MEFZE=2 XM B RES -
KRGO EERBERZMER AR
([BEzRpT]) B e

ARAIREMBLAR ([AEE]) X2
REBRPEARKNE (TREFR
FRFY) (THRBEDRFE2EERE DR
HET DERBELRSEHERDHEE
B-MAFEE AEEERBRHERK
ERERBBENHEERS -

BE-F-TE=A=t-ALEEZ
HISHRER =T —BF S AT LAME
R PETIE-

A NAEEET & B
#ﬁj&)ﬁ-ﬁﬂ ([BEEMBREE
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SRR DG MM ZF AT R BFT R
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78 B 75 ¥ 15 ZE I BN R [ 2 A F B A
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BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

(a)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain
changes to the format and titles of the primary financial
statements and to the presentation of some items within
these statements. A third statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
is required when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of
items in its financial statements or when it reclassifies
items in its financial statements. It also gives rise to
additional disclosures.

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s assets,
liabilities, income and expenses is unchanged. However,
some items that were recognised directly in equity are
now recognised in other comprehensive income, for
example exchange difference on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations. HKAS 1 affects the
presentation of owner changes in equity and introduces
a ‘Statement of comprehensive income’. Comparatives
have been restated to conform with the revised standard.
The Group has applied changes to its accounting polices
on presentation of financial statements and segment
reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to the
comparatives have not affected the consolidated or the
Company statements of financial position at 1 April 2008
and accordingly the third statement of financial position

as at 1 April 2008 is not presented.

RAHI LB TE BT
REER([EBUKREE
A1) &)

(a)

BEREHENEIR (=22 LF
BAERT) [MBHRERZ25 ]

RAZBGEIER
TFERET) BEEMBHRR] 2B
ARBERARLFERKRAE TH
BZ2FHETHE -EERE
BREBEFTBERIEPNESNHM
BHRERBEREHFD B FER
HER ZERARENKRELR
HMMIa R 2 B =M IEARREK -
ZERMELRIMESE -

—_—=< <
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BaBRERZEBRRNEME
EYARERR - Pl inR H e 5N E 75 B
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BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2. RAHIIALIETEBUK

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) “Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments”

The amendments require additional disclosures for
financial instruments which are measured at fair value
in the statement of financial position. These fair value
measurements are categorised into a three-level fair value
hierarchy, which reflects the extent of observable market
data used in making the measurements. In addition,
the maturity analysis for derivative financial liabilities
is disclosed separately and should show remaining
contractual maturities for those derivatives where this
information is essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions in the amendments and has not
provided comparative information in respect of the new
requirements.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified
and reportable operating segments for the Group.
However, reported segment information is now based
on internal management reporting information that is
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.
In the previous annual financial statements, segments
were identified by reference to the dominant source and
nature of the Group’s risks and returns. Comparatives
have been restated on a basis consistent with the new
standard.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,

certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but

are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

REER ([EBUKREE
A1) &)

(b)
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BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

2. 2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’'s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended HKFRSs
that are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting

policies is provided below. Certain other new and amended
HKFRSs have been issued but are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(a)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”

The standard is applicable in reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 and will be applied prospectively.
The new standard still requires the use of the purchase
method (now renamed the acquisition method) but
introduces material changes to the recognition and
measurement of consideration transferred and the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities, and the
measurement of non-controlling interests (previously
known as minority interests) in the acquiree. The new
standard is expected to have a significant effect on

business combinations occurring in reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and addresses
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
The new standard reduces the number of measurement
categories of financial assets and all financial assets will
be measured at either amortised cost or fair value based
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those on certain
equity investments which will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the new standard on the
Group’s results and financial position in the first year of
application.

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and introduces changes
to the accounting requirements for the loss of control
of a subsidiary and for changes in the Group’s interests
in subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income must be
attributed to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. The directors do not expect the standard
to have a material effect on the Group’s financial
statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEZ S BRXHE
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 46 to 171 have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK
(the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain derivative
financial instruments which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

3.1
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3.2 HMEAKREBEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(see note 3.3 below) made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or
loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Group and are not the
Group’s financial liabilities.
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BHEC

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority
interests are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the Group’s results. Where losses applicable to the
minority interests exceeds the minority interests in
the subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses
applicable to the minority interests are allocated against
the minority interests to the extent that the minority
interests has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the
losses are charged against the Group’s interests. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such profits are
allocated to the minority interest only after the minority
interests’ share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In the consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control) is
accounted for by applying the purchase method. This
involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial statements of
the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

3.2

3.3
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
losses unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

3.3

3.4
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 April 2005 have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising
on the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1 April
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other

items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

3.4

3.5
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, as follows:
Buildings 50 years or over
the term of lease, if shorter
3 to 10 years

5 to 10 years or over

Furniture and equipment
Fixtures

the term of lease, if shorter
Motor vehicles 4 10 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill

arising on acquisition of a subsidiary.

3.5

3.6
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Goodwill (Continued) 3.6 HE(E)

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities. The cost of the business
combination is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by
the Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 3.19).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
Goodwill relating to business combinations prior to 1
January 2001 continues to be held in reserves and will
be charged to the retained profits at the time when the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or
when a cash-generating unit to which goodwill relates

becomes impaired.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HBEME )
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Copyrights
Trademarks

1 to 10 years
5 to 10 years

Other intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described in note 3.19.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction

costs.

3.7

3.8
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POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued) 3.8 £WMEE (&)
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Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded

derivative is prohibited.
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POLICIES (continued)

3.8 £RMEE(£)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

= the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided

(a)
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internally on that basis to the key management ERETEZEEABAN
personnel; or Rk

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Fair value is determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value gain
or loss does not include any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets. Interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
in note 3.17 to these financial statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHBE &)

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair
value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 THMEE &)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(a)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the impairment

occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued) 3.8 LWMEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERME (Z)

(a)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost (8) HEEHEKASNKZ 2 FEE
(Continueq) (#&)
If, in subsequent period, the amount of the RE%E 2 AR - W EE R
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can SRS MR EEL
be related objectively to an event occurring after HERBREEREEZEHE
the impairment was recognised, the previously BBl ARz R EEE
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent TUABE - ERE TGRS
that it does not result in a carrying amount of the REEEESEBBARRK
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost BB B Bl B 5K B R
would have been had the impairment not been ERER 2 EEKA - E
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. SRR D AR 2 B A
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or R o

loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

(b)  Financial assets carried at cost (b) EEAZEC 2 EE
The amount of impairment loss is measured as BEBECENSREER
the difference between the carrying amount of the HESEZRECHEE R
financial asset and the present value of estimated 1T B R R AR 2 [ ET R
future cash flows discounted at the current market RIEEREHREBE 2 EZB5T
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such B REREBELETERN
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent H1ig iR o o

periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
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3.8 THMEE &)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available for sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently, if the fair
value of an available for sale equity security increases in

the remainder of an annual period, or in a subsequent
period, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of cars, watches and jewellery
included in the inventories are determined using the
first-in, first-out method while the other inventories
with different nature are determined using the weighted
average basis, and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments, are
initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial liabilities

3.12 £ @MAE

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accrued charges, amounts due to related
parties, derivative financial instrument, borrowings and
convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives including separated embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value (see note 3.10).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently

stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption

value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 EMAE (&)

3.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible note issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible note and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the call
option for conversion of the convertible note into equity, is
included in equity as capital reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion or

redemption of the convertible note.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

When the convertible note is converted, the capital
reserve and the carrying value of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the convertible note is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Other financial liabilities

These financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount of the guarantee,
i.e., the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(a) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases (Continued) 3.14 HE (&)

(b) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

3.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets (Continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised less

any accumulated amortisaton, if appropriate.

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have

been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity

transaction.

3.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, royalties and dividends, net of returns
and discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.

This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Royalty income from the licensing of trademarks is
recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the
substance of the license agreements.

Subcontracting income and income from provision of
after-sale services are recognised when services are
rendered.

Online comics viewing income is recognised on a basis
which generally coincides with the timing, when the
services are rendered.

Advertising income for advertisements on comic books
is recognised on the relevant publication date of the
Group’s comic books.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase
of assets are included in liabilities as deferred government
grants in the consolidated statement of financial position
and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented

“Other income” in the consolidated

in gross under
statement of comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 FEMEEZRE

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit

from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:;HBEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 FEMEEZRME (&)

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised for a cash-generating unit,
to which goodwill has been allocated, is credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying amount
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

3.20 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

3.20 EEEA (&)

(a) Retirement benefits (Continued) (a) BHEF (&)
The Group operates a defined contribution AEERBRGERTESET
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit EEF - BIEGAKSHE
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory AEHEF RS ERESEK
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its ‘A ([aEestEll) 2
employees who are eligible to participate in the EERHT—BRESFE -
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a HRERNEEELRT A
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. e -
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which AEBGEFREEZHBR
operate in the PRC are required to participate in Al ZEBAZINE M BF
a central pension scheme operated by the local ERZHRRBRIRESEE L
municipal government. These subsidiaries are EWBARARFRRKE
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll STEELEEREITERA
costs to the central pension scheme. —EBDzHRKe
Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit HEREERF ARER
or loss as employees render services during the HEEEE NER AR -
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans AEBRZEFEET &R
is limited to the fixed percentage contributions ERRENZEE B D Lt
payable. Ko

(b) Short-term employee benefits (b) EHIESEF

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHEXHME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.21

3.22

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

3.21

3.22
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.22 FTIBHigsTEE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

3.24

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

Film rights

Film rights represent completed animations which are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss based on the
proportion of actual income earned during the year to the
total estimated income from the exploration of film rights.
Where there is an impairment in value, the unamortised
balance is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the

Group’s major product and service lines.

3.22

3.23

3.24
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TES:HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.24

3.25

Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, income tax expense,
finance costs and corporate income and expenses which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include current and deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings and certain convertible notes.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

3.24

3.25
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHBE &)

POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Related parties (Continued)

(c) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(d) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(e) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (a) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(f)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3.19. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. As at 31 March
2010, the carrying amount of goodwill was approximately
HK$597,334,000 (2009: HK$597,334,000). Details of the
impairment assessment are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
with definite lives may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
assets in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.19. In assessing whether there is any indication
that other non-financial assets may be impaired, the
Group considers indications from both internal and
external sources of information such as evidence of
obsolescence or decline in economic performance of
the assets, changes in market conditions, economic
environment and customers’ tastes. These assessments
are subjective and require management’s judgements and

estimations.

4, BESFEFTTRAE &)
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(b)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, BESFEFTTRAE &)
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(c) Impairment of receivables (c) EWRIERE
The policy for making allowance for impairment of N5 B 2 JE UK TE R (B 2 R R
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of VA JE Wk 38 2 F] W B 32 2 AT AE &
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and REDMAREEE « #lE 5 E
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount o ST(A 2 Z IR GRIE 2 SRR 3
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate HEBAEDAENE  BESER
realisation of these receivables, including the current S EHABRZERBRRBEER
creditworthiness and the past collection history of Ptk MAEEERER BHAZ
each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions of the B AR B BB R R
customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate thus resulting 55 - R AT BEZBERB MR (B 264 o
in impairment as to their ability to make payments, EAEEEHER BBAZE
additional allowance for impairment may be required. FAE L RE 2 - T E B S AR R R
If the financial conditions of the customers/debtors of = HERE AARRHISS - BIAT gk
the Group, on whose account allowance for impairment R B (B 2E 4 o
has been made, were improved and no impairment of
their ability to make payments were noted, reversal of
allowance for impairment may be required.

(d) Impairment of inventories (d) HFERE
The management of the Group reviews the inventories at AEEBEEEREREAENT
each reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment B WwH AR BHREREERR
of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. The ETREEE BEREEFXERIEE
management estimates the net realisable value for such HASR 2R T 00 K% AR B W s (il ATt 55
inventories based primarily on the expected future market G822 ] #3558 - A& B ¥ ] &
conditions and the revenue associated. The Group makes REEEAEREEZEB ELHR
allowance for impairment if the net realisable value is BERE-
below the carrying amount.

(e) Impairment of film rights (e) EHIERE

The management of the Group reviews the film rights
at each reporting date, and makes allowance for
impairment when necessary. The management estimates
the recoverable amount of film rights based primarily
on the expected future market conditions as to whether
the revenue associated. The Group makes allowance for
impairment if the recoverable amount is below the net
carrying amount.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(f)

(9)

Valuation of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are
determined by Roma Appraisal Limited (“Roma”), a firm of
independent professional valuers. Binomial Model Option
Pricing Model was used in determining the fair value of
the derivative financial instruments. This valuation model
requires the input of subjective assumptions, including
the risk free rate, stock price, estimated volatility and
expected life of the options. Changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
Details of the fair value of each kind of the derivative
financial instrument are disclosed in note 25.

Valuation of convertible notes

The directors use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s and the
Company’s convertible notes at initial recognition which
are not quoted in the active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition
is estimated by Roma based on actual transactions of
the financial instruments in the market or transactions
of similar financial instruments which generally represent
the best estimate of the market value. The fair value of
convertible notes at initial recognition varies with different
variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any changes
in these variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of convertible notes. Details of
the fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition are
disclosed in note 31.
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(f)

(9)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 2E&ER
The executive directors have identified the following reportable MITEFDHAN T A RELEDLE:

operating segments:

Comics and animations development — Publish and distribute EELYEER-LEREAETESE
comic books, provide sub-contracting services for animations E REDEREDBERBURETR

production and distribute and broadcast animations;

Trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale services — Distribute branded cars,
namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce, and provide
related after-sale services;

Trading of branded watches — Distribute branded watches,
namely Richard Mille, DeWitt,
BiTourbillion;

Parmigiani and delaCour

Trading of branded jewellery — Distribute branded jewellery,
namely Boucheron and Federico Buccellati; and

Trading of fine wine — Distribute certain brands of fine wines.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. There are no inter-
segment sales between the respective segments for both
years.

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has changed the identified and
reportable operating segments for the Group by grouping the
two segments of publications and distributions of comic books
and multimedia development into one segment of comics and
animations development. Comparatives have been restated
on a basis consistent with the new standard. These operating
segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made on

the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 5. 7EER #)
2010
“E-2F
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
Comics and  and provision Trading of Trading of Trading of
animations  of after-sale branded branded fine
development services watches jewellery wines Total
RER
REEHAR
BER EHEZUR
HERRE RUERKRE 2RTHRES 2RKEER £EE% ait

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TR TER TRT TET TEL TR

Revenue from external oM

customers 139,074 933,621 104,245 2,053 40,135 1,219,128
Other income HelfA 9,095 18,912 117 - - 28,124
Reportable segment THRED B

revenue 148,169 952,533 104,362 2,053 40,135 1,247,252
Reportable segment results TTHRE S EEE 6,945 91,519 35,338 (182) 14,379 147,999

Allowance for impairment of ~ BWE ZHBEREER

receivables 1,625 - - - - 1,625
Amortisation of: B

~ film rights =Lt 4,641 - - - - 4,641

- other intangible assets —HEVEE 4,760 - 1,249 115 - 6,124
Depreciation of property, plant 91 - EZ kR ETE

and equipment 1,750 2,245 307 95 - 4,397
Property, plant and equipment #5415 - 2 Rk

written-off 474 - - - - 474

Write-down of inventories to MU FEZ A& FE
net realisable value 1,975 - - - - 1,975
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5. 7EER #)
2010
ZE-2F
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
Comics and  and provision Trading of Trading of
animations  of after-sale branded branded Trading of
development services watches jewellery fine wines Total
RER
BESHR
BER EAHEZUR
BERE RUEKKE 2RIRES LHKEES ZEES &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FhER THER FHER THER ThEx
Reportable segment assets ~ AIRENBEE 107,952 859,813 110,179 33,389 30,203 1,141,536
Corporate assets: RAEE:
- Financial assets -SHEE 40,103
- Non-financial assets -FEeREE 3,360
Consolidated total assets  GAHEE 1,184,999
Additions to non-current ERNREERD
segment assets NERAE
during the year 1,357 7,343 1,953 2,250 - 12,903
Reportable segment liabilties A= EAE 25,741 163,205 14,820 - - 203,766
Corporate liabilties: AAAfE:
- Financial liabilities -tRaf 101,258
~ Non-financial liabilities ~FEREE 6,069
Consolidated total liabilities 44 # & & 311,003
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 5. 7 EBER 2
2009
ZEENE
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
Comics and  and provision Trading of Trading of
animations of after-sale branded branded Trading of
development services watches jewellery fine wines Total
AER
BEZHR
BER RHEESUR
HEER RESKRE 2BFTRESH 2EKEES 2E25 CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAL TAT TAT
Revenue from external HoMas
customers 162,327 435,679 23,624 - - 611,530
Other income EffA 22,723 24,904 - - - 47,627
Reportable segment revenue A& 2Bl 175,050 460,583 23,524 = = 659,157
Reportable segment results A& EEE (202,780) 38,366 4,648 - - (159,766)
Allowance for impairment of:  J{E%f :
— film rights R IRE 31,869 - - - - 31,809
- goodwil ~BE 127,246 - - - - 127,246
- other intangible assets ~EENEE 4,885 = = = = 4,885
- receivables — WA 19 302 82 - - 403
Amortisation of; 3k
~ film rights =it 3,757 - - - - 3,757
- other intangible assets —EEVEE 1,932 - 783 - - 2,715
- prepaid lease payments -BNAERA 58 - - - - 58
Depreciation of property, plant  ¥1% * B RRENE
and equipment 1,990 2,746 - - - 4,736
Write-down of inventories to ~ HiBEEE A # R F(E
net realisable value 46,814 - - - - 46,814
Reversal of write-down of BEMAEER
inventories to net realisable A &R % (E
value (2,236) - - - - (2,236)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 5. 7EER #)
2009
—EINE
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
Comics and  and provision Trading of Trading of
animations of after-sale branded branded Trading of
development services watches jewellery fine wines Total
AER
BEZHR
BER RHEESUR
PELE RUERRE 2LHRTHRES LHKEES HBES At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TAL TAL ThL THL TAT
Reportable segment assets ~ AIREDHEE 123,256 692,918 52,121 - - 868,295
Corporate assets: RAEE:
- Financial assets ~SREE 6,210
~ Non-financial assets ~FeREE 4,667
Consolidated total assets GREAE 879,172
Additions to non-current FAREERINEEE
segment assets during
the year 1,842 11,139 5,951 - - 18,932
Reportable segment liabilties  AIRENEEE 40,595 33,813 1,049 - - 75,457
Corporate liabilties: AAAfE:
~ Financial liabilities ~¢HEE 222,188
- Non-financial liabilities —¥eRak 2,576
Consolidated total liabilties %A B E(E 300,221
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead) 5. 2EER (#)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

EAKEEEN R At BF RNy
BREMENAEREZEZMBHFTEH

the financial statements as follows: BRANE ¢
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T T
Reportable segment results AIREDBEEE 147,999 (159,766)
Bank interest income RITH B U A 196 530

Fair value losses on derivative financial T4 & @ T Az AREEE

instruments (588) (111)
Unallocated corporate income ROBRAWA - 279
Unallocated corporate expenses APBRARIMAE (17,161) (10,184)
Finance costs A& KA (12,199) (16,472)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEB AT (EE) 118,247 (185,724)

The Group’s segment revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided

AEEZHE2HINEEIERSEE
(ERMITARINRTIIMEE S -
into the following geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

5k 25 ERBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%F -TRAF C-B-BF  -TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET FER FHET
Mainland China and &S
Hong Kong (domicile) (& EH2h) 1,217,212 610,281 627,146 625,884
Others Hib 1,916 1,249 - -
1,219,128 611,530 627,146 625,884
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the asset.

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to these
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from
these activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised during
the year is as follows:

5.

TEER (&)

EPEARERSE SRS M2 &
REW - FRBEEMRNEELT A
FE M A 2T o

iz
AEBZETBEBNZEWHERERME
1R - ARE 2 SRR EEBH
Btz -

FABRBRERNEE EZEXZE 2 Wz
T

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FHAT

Sale of automobiles FEHE 892,595 424,373

Sale of branded jewellery HEREHE 2,053 =

Sale of branded watches BEFHREE 104,245 23,524

Sale of fine wines HBHE 40,135 =

Sale of comics books EEEEE 71,050 86,018

Sale of comics scripts EEBRIANHEE 12 242

Sale of copyrights i 1 85 & 26,000 =

Sale of merchandised goods P miEE 943 855

Royalty income HREERA 6,500 8,073
Subcontracting income for BEZEMITWRA

animation production 34,385 56,472
Income from provision of REEZREKA

after-sale services 41,026 11,306

Online comics viewing income PLEEMBEWRA 184 667

1,219,128 611,530
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on 15% of the paid-up capital of a subsidiary of the Group,
Nanjing Hongying Anmie-cartoon Entertainment Company
Limited* (“Nanjing Hongying”), within 3 years from the date

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hil A
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Advertising income & &= WA 48 29
Allowance for impairment of 1% (o] e LAy 2k T8 Sk (8 2 4
receivables written-back 87 -
Amortisation of government grants B S U A B (PR
(note i) 116 116
Bank interest income RITF B HA 196 530
Bonus receivable from a supplier REBARERSTZ
under warranty period JE W AT A 4,545 -
Exchange gains, net [ 5 Ui 5 58 181 =
Gains on disposals of property, plant MEWE HBEREEZ
and equipment g - 18,178
Government grants (note ii) BT B (B 5ii) 5,944 4,249
Income from insurance brokerage IR & 48 WA 1,077 =
Net fair value gains on derivative mESBMITAEARFEKZ
financial instruments 1,887 -
Other income from animations REESHEF 2 HMKA 2,217 =
Other income from car dealership RETBERIERE 2 A 9,312 24,904
Others Hity 1,544 430
Write-back of deposits received B0 B Wiz e 1,166 =
28,320 48,436
Notes: Bt o
()  The Group was entitled to receive government grants based () AEEBREBBRIZEAEENEQRE

REEHEREFRAA (AR
Bl @R & R15%E 2 WA ## B -
HERREKZE AR AHA=F-

of its establishment. The amount was recognised as deferred A THEERRBEEHRNME)  RNE&E
government grants and was amortised to profit or loss over 15 AN+ R FEE-
years.

(i)  The Group was entitled to receive, and recognised directly in iy REBEEZZT—ZFTF=A=+—HIEHF

profit or loss, grants of HK$5,944,000 (2009: HK$4,249,000)
from the government of the PRC for productions and
distributions of animations for the year ended 31 March 2010.

t Unofficial name for translation purpose only.

B AEEERENRYEREBEZNE
BERERAPBEBEHEERETSHE Y
4 Bh£5,944,0008 T (ZE T NF :

4,249,000 7T ) °

t RIFEABHE ERBEREHT
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8. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 8. KB (FE#E)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Operating profit/(loss) are arrived e R, (B8 BNk,
at after charging/(crediting): (FTA)LATIER :
Allowance for impairment of film rights* 52 F i 42 sl (B 2 5+ - 31,869
Allowance for impairment of goodwill* 722 ) (B % & * - 127,246
Allowance for impairment of other H b2 & =R E
intangible assets* - 4,885
Allowance for impairment of FE R IE R (B 2 1
receivables* 1,625 403
Amortisation of film rights* 5 AR G 4,641 3,757
Amortisation of other intangible Hh B A S
assets™ 6,124 2,715
Amortisation of prepaid lease TR HH EFRIB
payments** - 58
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B & 1,190 1,200
Less: Under/(over)-provision in BBEFEEEIRS
prior years (FHBFERE) 10 (20)
1,200 1,180
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERI 2FERA 21
expense, including 957,439 493,711
— Write-down of inventories to net —WoRTFEER 25 FE"
realisable value* 1,975 46,814
— Reversal of write-down of —REMRTES
inventories to net realisable value* A E(E - (2,236)
Depreciation of property, Y HEER R R M 2 AT B
plant and equipment*#* 5,538 5,583
Exchange losses, net b 5 B 18 5 5 - 854
Fair value losses on derivative MEEBITAERNABEEE"
financial instruments* 588 111
Losses on disposals of property, HEME - HBERZHZ
plant and equipment** Eia 109 =
Operating lease payments HEBFZ2RKEHERE
in respect of rented premises 27,708 15,991
Property, plant and equipment /ER S E SR E
written-off* 474 -
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8. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) (Continued) 8. RE®RFM(ER) (#)
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Defined contribution retirement benefits & 8 {ft F & & & K48 7l 51 2
scheme contributions for employees WK 2,918 2,631
Other staff costs, including directors’ EMBERK BIE=ESME
emoluments 70,682 77,021
Total staff costs B B Rk A 458 73,600 79,652
Amounts capitalised in inventories BAGEZSH (5,939) (9,516)
Staff costs charged to profit or loss REENR 2B E KA 67,661 70,136
Cost of inventories recognised as ERERI 2HFEERA -
expense includes the following BENATREFA
expenses which are also included EEUBBECBREEL
in the respective total amounts -3
separately disclosed
Depreciation e 1,077 1,076
Staff costs BB AR 46,253 65,672
# The amounts have been included in cost of sales. During the f SHEAHERS - AEEREES

EENFE=ZA=+—HBLEFERAED
2,236,000 7T 2 BRI MR 2 F & ©

year ended 31 March 2009, the Group reversed HK$2,236,000
of a previous write-down of inventories.

4,760,000 T A i B A EEE (=
TTNEF:1,742,0008 7T) ER &
AR S8 0 1,364,000/ 7T E b 2
BE#SHE (ZZTZTNF :783,000%7T)
ERITERERF X TS
FEAEEHE (ZZF T 5 : 190,000/
To) AR E AL B AP -

i Amortisation of other intangible assets of HK$4,760,000 i
(2009: HK$1,742,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$1,364,000 (2009: HK$783,000) in administrative expenses
and nil (2009: HK$190,000) in other operating expenses.

1,077,000 T &E (Z T NF:
1,076,000/ 70) B R85 & K AN A X
2,171,000 THE (ZZTZ N
12,685,000 70) ERHE ko
B A AR 3 88 0 12,290,000 7T i &
(ZZEZT N4 :1,822,000% 7T ) BIRATT
BRERAP -

##  Depreciation of HK$1,077,000 (2009: HK$1,076,000) has been i
expensed in cost of sales, HK$2,171,000 (2009: HK$2,685,000)
in selling and distribution costs and HK$2,290,000 (2009:
HK$1,822,000) in administrative expenses.

The amounts have been included in other operating expenses. * SHEBFAHEMKEER -

* RBWEFATHEM-

> The amounts have been included in administrative expenses.
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. WMERAK
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Interest expenses on financial liabilities B SHAKANFI BR 2 £ BY B (&
stated at amortised cost: FEER
- Bank loans and overdrafts wholly —BARAFRNEHEEZ
repayable within five years BITERRBEX 442 329
— Other loans wholly repayable —BARAFANEHEEZ
within five years H B R 418 =
— Effective interest expenses on —AFEENBRBREEZ
convertible notes for the year ERFEEA
(Note 31) (FF7E31) 12,134 16,143
— Over-provision of effective interest —BAFEANRREE L
expenses on convertible notes in BT B & ABERE
prior years (Note 31) (FF7E31) (795) =
12,199 16,472

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC

is charged at progressive rates ranging from 18% to 25%
(2009: 18% to 25%) on deemed profits calculated at 6% to
10% (2009: 10%) on revenue in accordance with relevant tax

regulations in the PRC.

FrEH

BREFEH DR BAFE BT ERTR
LT Z16.5% (Z T T NF:16.5%)
FTE BINEFBETRBEAFE G5
ERBEFRAEEBLE R 2 RITH
KEBRPEAAAREER AarE TS
B B 8 B 2 TS Bt T9AR BR DA MR 25 2. 6%
Z210% (ZZEZNF :10% ) st E 2 HE
% M IR18%E25% (—BEENF:18%
£25% ) 2 BEBIRGTE -
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l

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea) 10. FTBH X H (#)
Nanjing Hongying is established in Nanjing High and Advanced M RBENE R R R IEEFAERK
Technological Industries Development Zone, of which Nanjing VoRAREREER ST LE—A—
Hongying is exempted from the PRC Corporate Income Tax for B ER BB P B XS E
the two years since 1 January 2007 and are thereafter subject B =FAZ15% 2 B RGP B2
to a tax rate at 15% for the following three years. FriS i o
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Current tax REFEHIE
Hong Kong: B
— Current year —REE 564 324
— Under-provision in respect of —BAFERETR
prior years 108 72
Overseas: I :
— Current year —RFE 3,728 1,897
4,400 2,293
Deferred tax (Note 32) EFEFIE (FT7E32)
— Current year —KEE (65) (441)
— Under-provision in respect of —BAEFEREETR
prior years 249 =
— Write-down of deferred tax assets — ORI RE T IR & B - 4,003
— Attributable to reduction in tax rate — T EREEES - 176
184 3,738

Total income tax expense TS~ H4a%E 4,584 6,031
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FTBHR W (&
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/ REABRAEREL HEETER
(loss) at applicable tax rates: (E18) 2 HR
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEBAIEF (EBE) 118,247 (185,724)
Tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, BRATSBIATDREF S (EE) 2

calculated at the rates applicable I IREARE

to profits in the tax jurisdictions RIBRERER 2552

concerned HEGTE 1,423 (32,996)
Tax on turnover of subsidiaries, MEBARE B oHIE &

calculated at the statutory rates N F18%E25%

ranging from 18% to 25% (ZEZNF 18% %

(2009: 18% to 25%) 25% ) 2 A ER KT E 2,922 655
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRRT W R 2 TS 5 2 (900) (5,040
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses I~ A] 1R 5z ) 2 B 765 2 £ 4,471 36,453
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZREAFIEEE 2

recognised M E 812 5,796
Tax effect of temporary difference not ~ KER Z e =5 2

recognised Mz E (4) 148
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised AFEERBEFERER

tax losses utilised this year ZBBEEBEBE MG E (4,480) (16)
Tax effect of utilisation of unrecognised ) A R MR Z EEF B E E

deferred tax assets 2B E (17) (90)
Tax effect from tax exemption/relief %RE%%/%%Z%RW SR 2 - (3,216)
Under-provision of Hong Kong profits 8 1E F € & & A 15 5

tax in prior years BETE 108 72
Under-provision of deferred tax BAEFERERERETR

in prior years 249 =
Write-down of deferred tax assets HORL R RE 718 & B - 4,003
Effect on opening deferred tax lf)%%‘lt%ﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁi?ﬂ

balances resulting from reduction BEETIRE SR 2 B

in tax rate - 176
Others EHAb - 86
Income tax expense FTie iz i 4,584 6,031
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cContinued) 10. FREBIZH (#)

Hong Kong SAR Government enacted a reduction in the profit

tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% from the year of assessment

2008/09. Accordingly, the current tax and deferred tax liabilities

EBRFRBEAEHE -_ZEZ)\ ThF
HEEREMNESHHEERIT.E% FNAZE
16.5% cE it NEARELERIBEELD

have been calculated using the new rates. LI R HE o
11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. ELEE
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
BIREF
Exne FeRER HE RN &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TAER THER
Year ended BE-Z-Z5=A
31 March 2010 =+—HLEE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Tong Kai Lap BRI 180 1,860 12 2,052
Zheng Hao Jiang 5T 1,980 - 12 1,992
Zhao Xiao Dong AR
(redesignated as (R=ZEZTNF
executive director on NA—B#AFEA
1 September 2009) HITES) 775 200 7 982
Wong Chun Keung i
(resigned on 14 (RZZZNF
December 2009) TZATMAB#E) 120 488 8 616
Non-executive director:  FE#iTEE -
Zhang Si Jian RBR
(appointed on 14 (RZZTNEF
December 2009) TZATHAEZE) 54 - - 54
Independent non- BUHHTEE -
executive directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo £ 212 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong ME & 180 - - 180
Lee Kang Bor, Thomas & 180 - - 180
Total &t 3,649 2,548 39 6,236
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 1. EEME (2

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
RKAEF
EEx0e e kEk ST &It 5K Bt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FATT FET FAT
Year ended BHEZZTTNGE
31 March 2009 ZA=+—HL%FE
Executive directors: HTE % :
Tong Kai Lap B (RZTTN\F
(redesignated as NATABHRAEAE
executive directors HITESE)
on 16 June 2008) 180 1,471 10 1,661
Wong Chun Keung FH iR 180 1,571 12 1,763
Zheng Hao Jiang BT (R=ZBZNE
(redesignated as NATABHATAE
executive directors HITES)
on 16 June 2008) 1,566 - - 1,566
Ko Chi Keung (retired mEE (RZETNEF
26 August 2008) AR _+/\ HRE) 75 50 = 125
Kwong Chi Tak (resigned B&EE (R=ZTZNF
26 August 2008) NAZ+RBEHE) 75 275 5 355
Wan Siu Lun (resigned BB/ (RZZZTN\F
on 16 October 2008) +A+BEF) 105 1,155 7 1,267
Non-executive director:  FEBFTEE -
Zhao Xiao Dong HINR(R=ZZEENE
(appointed on +H+ A ABEEE)
16 October 2008) 163 - - 163
Independent non- BUHHTEE
executive directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo £ B 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong HE & 180 - - 180
Lee Kang Bor, Thomas Z# Kk (R-ZTZ N\ £
(appointed on NAZ+ X BEZE)
26 August 2008) 108 - - 108
Tsui Pui Hung (resigned i (R=ZZ \F
on 26 August 2008) NAZ+SBEHE) 73 - - 73
Total ast 2,885 4,522 34 7,441
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11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included three (2009: three) existing
directors of the Company whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 11 above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining two (2009: two) individuals during the
year are as follows:

11.

12.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

BEEME &)

RAEFERN  AEEY EFREEA
& AER AR R B RN IMAKREE
B2 RS ERBER 2 HE - FR- %
BEENRLARNBEREETAMNE -

Afum&EFAL

ERFEAERRAUEZSHFALH H
R=f (ZFTNF: =) BARAR
FTEZ REZHMECO R EXMEIAmR
2523 AR R - F R RE R E SRR

“ETAF BU)RSFALZHE
LN

2010 2009
—E-FEF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits Fre kHEMmEF 4,779 5,981
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIET SR

contributions 24 17
4,803 5,998

The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bl 70 F T 51 48 5 -
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t £2,500,000/% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £3,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T £4,000,000/% 7T - =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,000/% 7T - -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T £5,000,000/% 7T - 1
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13. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

14.

BREBARANE FH, 2010

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$113,016,000 (2009: loss of HK$189,969,000),
a profit of HK$3,263,000 (2009: loss of HK$198,603,000) has
profit dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13.

107

g%ﬁﬁﬁk@ﬁ%ﬂ/fﬁ

RARARBEAANAEGLESE &
113,016,000 L (Z T NF : B8
189,969,000/ 7T ) # + 3,263,000/ 7T
— T TN F : E518198,603,0007% 7T )
ZaFMBERARBHBEHRERPEREE -

DIVIDENDS
14. B2
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Interim dividends of HK0.5 cent per A HER A% B = A% 0.578 Il
share (2009: HK1.0 cent) T AF 1.081L)
— to existing shareholders —IKNFIRABRE 10,556 15,512
— to other shareholders* — RS T H AR R 2,875 2,350
13,431 17,862
Proposed final dividend of HKO.3 cent 3% >k Hi ik 2 & AR0.37 L
per share (2009: Nil) (ZZEZNF : |) 8,059 -
21,490 17,862
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14. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 14. RE (&)

l

Notes: B 5 -

*k

Subsequent to 30 September 2008, an aggregate of
235,000,000 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the
conversion of convertible notes (the “New Shares I”). The holders
of the New Shares | were also entitled to the interim dividend
pursuant to the relevant provisions in the Company’s Bye-laws.
Accordingly, an interim dividend of HK$2,350,000 was paid to
the holders of the New Shares |.

Subsequent to 30 September 2009, an aggregate of
575,000,000 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the
conversion of convertible notes (the “New Shares II”). The
holders of the New Shares Il were also entitled to the interim
dividend pursuant to the relevant provisions in the Company’s
Bye-laws. Accordingly, an interim dividend of HK$2,875,000 was
paid to the holders of the New Shares II.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend out
of the contributed surplus of the Company of HKO0.3 cent per
ordinary share, totalling HK$8,059,000 in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2010. Such a dividend is to be approved by
the Company’s shareholders at the upcoming Annual General
Meeting. The proposed dividend has not been reflected as
a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of contributed surplus for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

*k

RZZEZN\FENA=TH% Riga]
AR & & £ 847235,000,0000% &
AR ([E—HFRMD]) - RIBEARAA
NAMABIERREX  E—HHRDFAE
A TN AT SR AR RS S o It R HARR B
2,350,000/ 7t B IR 5 T 28 —#EHTAR 9
FBEA-

RZZEThENLA=1TBE%® A%
575,000,0000% & 3 I% P A #2 A% 22 15
i ERT ([EHHRMD]) - 1R
BARRIREI ARG B  EBbE
A AINAIERF RS - Bt -
f HAR% 52,875,000/ L E IR FE =
BHEFRGOIFEAC

EXEFRARRZBARBTES
T TE-A=+—HAILFERZE
B AAR0.BL 2 REARR B - 4858
#8,059,000% 7t ° Z IR B AFA A 7
AR FEE R BT RS LB - BR
AR B 4 N % SR SRR R R A R
HlRE HEeRBRABEE-Z—Z
FZA=+—BLFEZRARHE
)Eﬁo
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15. §RER (FA)

(a)

(b)

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$113,016,000 (2009: loss of HK$189,969,000)
and on the weighted average of 2,186,796,687 (2009:
1,504,003,261) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2010 is based on the adjusted
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$125,150,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,712,865,179 outstanding during the
year, after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The adjusted profit attributable to the owners of the
Company is calculated based on the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2010 of HK$113,016,000 as used in the calculation of
basic earnings per share plus effective interest expenses
on convertible notes of HK$12,134,000.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation of diluted earnings per share is calculated
based on the weighted average of 2,186,796,687
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 March
2010 as used in the calculation of basic earnings per
share plus the weighted average of 526,068,492 ordinary
shares deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all
the Company’s convertible notes had been converted.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2009 was not presented as the potential ordinary shares
had anti-dilutive effect on loss per share.

(a)

(b)

=N

BREARRMNDIBEARGHESR
A JE 535 #1113,016,000/8 7T ( =
TN F518189,969,000/8 7T )
RERNBBEITEBRMETHH
2,186,796,687/% (ZZ T )L F :
1,504,003,2610% ) 51 & -

Be

HE-T—ZTF=A=+—HALF
B2 BREERF THIRBA RN RE
B A FEAL &8 8% 54 #1)125,150,000
BT RFRNBEITL B Z INE
I £ $12,712,865,1790% 5T & - &
FERMEECBRELYBR Y
EEHTFHRE-

RNARER AEEEARRF IR
BRETESREARAZEEZ

—ZF=ZA=+—HLEFEAR
R A A AFEAE R H)113,016,000
BT BINATRREE 2 EEF S
£ 12,134,000/ Tt &

BETEEREBERMN 2 LB
MEFHHENRBEREAEESR
EARBAZHBE-_T—TF=A
=t+—BIEFEDRTLRER I
15 %2,186,796,687 8% * B H0 %
MARRZHIBAKRKREEEE
ERmMERIEEERT 2L ER
DO 15 #526,068,4920% 51 &

Eﬂﬁéigﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ“ﬁﬁil@ﬂéﬂﬁ
Ji?%ﬁ%?/a EAZIEHEEJ%E
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

16. W% HEBERKBE-FEE

GROUP
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
B KB
BF ES "E &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT THET FHBT THBT
At 1 April 2008 R-_ZEZN\FEA—H
Cost PR 6,227 9,197 2,219 17,643
Accumulated ZEHE

depreciation (567) (2,632) (853) (4,052)
Net carrying amount FEREE 5,660 6,565 1,366 13,591
Year ended BHEZZTZNE=H

31 March 2009 =t+—BLFE
Opening net carrying FMFEEE

amount 5,660 6,565 1,366 13,591
Exchange differences bE N = - 127 16 143
Additions NE - 9,337 2,706 12,043
Acquisition of =N

subsidiaries (F¥35)

(Note 35) - 3,174 1,075 4,249
Disposals HE (5,606) (48) (17) (5,671)
Depreciation e (54) (4,593) (936) (5,583)
Closing net carrying FRFEEE

amount = 14,562 4,210 18,772
At 31 March 2009 and ~ RZ=ZETNF

1 April 2009 =R=+—-Bk

ZTETNFMA—H
Cost B AR — 23,965 5,879 29,844
Accumulated 2t E

depreciation - (9,403) (1,669) (11,072)

Net carrying amount FEREE - 14,562 4,210 18,772
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. 1% HERRE LK
GROUP (continuead) (#&)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
B KB
BF ES "E &5t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBIT THBT THBT THBT
Year ended BE-Z-ZF%
31 March 2010 ZA=t+-HLEFE
Opening net carrying FEYFEEE
amount - 14,562 4,210 18,772
Exchange differences BN = - 15 2 17
Additions NE 447 10,292 1,208 11,947
Disposals HE = (141) (225) (366)
Write-off i 35 = (474) - (474)
Depreciation e - (4,161) (1,377) (5,538)

Closing net carrying F&FKREE

amount 447 20,093 3,818 24,358

At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE-2F
ZA=t-H

Cost (DN 447 31,737 6,747 38,931
Accumulated 2FME

depreciation - (11,644) (2,929) (14,573)
Net carrying amount EIREE 447 20,093 3,818 24,358
As at 31 March 2010, the Group's buildings were situated in I

T-PF=A=1—8 AKEZ
- AR B -

the PRC and were held under medium-term lease. BF AR
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17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 17. B AR R RMB AR 24
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY = Eeli NN
2010 2009
—EB-BF —ZEENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET AT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRRS  HRAA 150,298 150,298
Less: Allowance for impairment OB (73,298) (109,298)
77,000 41,000
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MEBAR AR AEERR RORRE
repayable on demand. SKIEE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are RZE—ZTF=A=1+—HAZ2FEWB
as follows: NAZFHBWOT
Percentage
Place/country of of effective
incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
HRAL/ KRR
WEAEERE R/ ER Fiifs B 2 S RAEE ERERAIL 2 TEEBREENY
Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$10,000 100%"  Investment holding, the
British Virgin Islands
FERERERA A RRENES il 10,000% T 100%* REZR REELHES
Dragon Animation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$100 100%  Development of animation
and related products,
Hong Kong
EHEERAA BE L@k 100/ 7T 100% REDSREFER EF
Jade Dynasty Comics Development Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$2 100%  Publications of comic
Limited books, Hong Kong
FEHEERRERAR BE L@k 28T 100% HREEERE &%
Jade Dynasty Publications Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$30,000,000 100%  Publications of comic

books and investment
holding, Hong Kong

FEALRERAA BE L@k 30,000,000 7 100% HREEEEREEER:
B
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17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (Continued)

17. B AR EZE R B AR 24
15 3l NUNE= N

Percentage
Place/country of of effective
incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
EmAL/ KRR
WEARAR R/ EX i R A E Rl RAEE BEREZEIN FTEXBREEHE
KINGcomics.com Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$2 100%  Provision of online comic
viewing services and sale
of related merchandised
goods, Hong Kong
BETRBHNERAR BE EER 28T 100% REELEENERBR
HERBRR BE
Sparkle Roll International Distributions Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$100 100%  Trading of branded watches
Limited (formerly known as Rising and fine wines (2009:
Dragon Publications Limited) Sales of merchandised
goods), Hong Kong
BRERREERAR BE EER 10077 100% REFEREEES(ZF
(FIBREE R BRAR) ZNE: HERm) BB
Yulang Animation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$30,000,000 100%  Development of animations
and games, Hong Kong
ENHEFRAF 0 gl 30,000,000/ 7T 100% FERBERES B4
Yuk Long Publishing (International) Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$10,000 100%  Publications of comic
Limited books, Hong Kong
THEE (RK)ERAR &g EER 10,0007 ¢ 100% HiREEEH B
Yuk Long Cultural Development The PRC Paid-up capital HK$1,000,000 100%  Digital graphic design and
(Shenzhen) Limited software development,
the PRC
ERBLER CRIDEBR AR e BRBEA 1,000,000/ ¢ 100% BBEGRTREHFAE
i
Suzhou Hongyang Cartoon Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid-up capital US$1,500,000 51%  Productions of animations,
(“Suzhou Hongyang") the PRC
EMERRBAEERAT HE HRBA 1,500,000% 7T 51% HfEHE
(TR M%)
Shanghai Sanding Animation Creation The PRC Paid-up capital RMB3,000,000 100%"  Distributions of animations
Company Limited * (“Shanghai Sanding”) (2009: Productions of
animations), the PRC
i HRBA AK#3,000,0007C 100%" E1HE(ZTTNF:

LE=SBBREERAT
(TLE=81)

SEPE) hE
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17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (Continued)

17. BB LA AEERMEB LR &

BR—ANT (&)

Percentage
Place/country of of effective
incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
EmAL/ KRR
WEAR AR R/ EX i R A E Rl RAHE BEREZAIN FEXEBREESY
Nanjing Hongying Anmie-cartoon The PRC Paid-up capital RMB15,000,000 100%"  Productions and
Entertainment Company Limited * distributions of
animations, the PRC
ARBESEREERD A HE HRBA AR #15,000,0007C 100%" BERETHE - HE
Guang Dong Xian Tai Books Limited * The PRC Paid-up capital RMB2,000,000 100%"  Publications of comic
books, the PRC
EREXBEZERAR HE HRBA AR #2,000,0007T 100%" HREEEE HE
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors The PRC Paid-up capital RMB20,000,000* 100%"  Trading of automobiles
Trading Limited * (“Mei He") and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
EREARKAELE HERDA HE HRBA AR 20,000,000 100%" MEREHZHREHES
(E=) ARIR R ER R P E
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited * The PRC Paid-up capital RMB17,770,000 100%"  Trading of automobiles
(‘De Te") and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
ERERAEESERAA ([B5]) HE HRBA AR¥17,770,0007C 100%" MEREHZHREHES
ARIR R ER R P E
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HKS$1 100%  Trading of branded watches
(‘SRW&J") and branded jewellery
(2009: Trading of branded
watches), Hong Kong
BREFREFRAA BA ERR BT 100% ARFERRGEKEES
(IBREEHE]) (ZZTNF: 2BF&
g5) &%
Richard Mille (Shanghai) Trading The PRC Paid-up capital RMBB896,690 100%  Trading of branded watches
Company Limited * (‘RMSH?) and branded jewellery
(2009: Trading of branded
watches), the PRC
HE(EB)ABERAR (RELE]) HE HRBA AR #896,6907 100% REFERREBKELS

(Z2RNF BRTE
8%) HHE
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17. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
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17. B AR RMEB AT 24

SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (Continued) B—-ARQNT @)
Percentage
Place/country of of effective
incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
EmAL/ KRR
WEARAR R/ EX s R A R RAHE BEREZAIN FEXEBREESY
Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading The PRC Paid-up capital HK$10,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited * watches, the PRC
(formerly known as f5 58 (1 7) B
BRAR)
BERA (XR)BHERARDA i HRBRA 10,000,000/ 70 100% HARFEES FH
(Afdimshdm (bR EBRERAR)
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce The PRC Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000¢ 100%  Trading of branded watches
Development Limited * (“XTD”) and branded jewellery,
the PRC
TRBRARMEERRERD A HE HRBRA AR #10,000,0007T" 100% HBRFEREABKEES
([FrXs]) H
Hui De Ding Feng Investment Consultant ~ The PRC Paid-up capital RMB3,000,000 100%  Provision of consultancy
(Beijing) Limited * (*HD")*# services, the PRC
EESEREBM (LR ERAR HE AR KA AR #3,000,0007 100% REEERSE FE
(TESL)**
+ Unofficial name for translation purpose only + RIFEXNEHE ERBERAEHY
* Only this subsidiary is directly held by the Company. All other * BB ARBARAREERE A
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. HfBARYHAQRBERSE -
*  As at 24 May 2010, the paid-up capial of Mei He has been * RIZE—TFRA-THEAB EAZH
increased from RMB20,000,000 to RMB33,000,000. IR A B B A R #20,000,0007T 15 0
%= AR #33,000,0007T °
# As at 8 June 2010, the paid-up capital of XTD has been # R-ZE—ZFERANE FIRMZHR
increased from RMB10,000,000 to RMB49,000,000. &R E B A R #10,000,0007T & i &=
A R #49,000,0007T °
##  Subsequent to the reporting date, HD has changed its name to #H  RREER ESEFER AL FRKEE

Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising Multi-media Limited*.

The Group has appointed nominees as the registered owners
of these companies or their holding companies. The Group has
entered into contractual agreements to obtain the controls over
the entire business operations and is entitled to all profits of and
assume the risk of these companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

TESERERAG-

AEBEZERBARZF QA ZEM
BEASEZERDR - AEEEFTLE
ek AR HIZE R B 2 2 BEBR
% BERZFAEMB N A RALEZ
FRRZ AR -

ERBIEERR/ETEFEAFEXRE
IERAEEEEFEEEN D ZAR

AMBAR -EFRR

ARG E AR

BRAAZEE 55 ARBRTE
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18. GOODWILL 18. &
The main changes in the carrying amount of goodwill result BEZEABETZZYRAMNEREAR
from acquisition of subsidiaries as well as impairment of AR ZAEBRAEEZRE BEZF
previously recognised goodwill. The net carrying amount of REENSMAT:

goodwill can be analysed as follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year REA]
Gross carrying amount BERTEE 724,580 141,194
Accumulated impairment 2ETRE (127,246) =
Net carrying amount FEREE 597,334 141,194
Year ended 31 March HE=ZA=+—RHLFE
Opening net carrying amount FH2FRMEE 597,334 141,194
Acquisition of subsidiaries UK BE BT B A A) - 580,679
Acquisition of additional interests in UK BE B B A R B AN
subsidiaries - 2,707
Allowance for impairment BAEER - (127,246)
Closing net carrying amount FRZFREE 597,334 597,334
At end of the year RELK
Gross carrying amount HREARE A 724,580 724,580
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (127,246) (127,246)

Net carrying amount FARMEE 597,334 597,334
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18. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued) 18. BE -4 K8 (&)

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance for
impairment, is allocated to the following cash-generating units
(‘cauU”):

ARz REERMREARERER D
RETHREEESM:

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT T T

Comics and animations development 82 & &) & 51 2 16,655 16,655
Trading of automobiles and related AEREASHREHE S

parts and accessories and provision DA K 1 1 65 18 AR 7%
of after-sale services 580,679 580,679
Net carrying amount at end of the year F# 2 /FREE 597,334 597,334

The recoverable amount for the CGU of the comics and
animations development business as at 31 March 2010 was
determined based on the fair value less cost to sell of the
business with the fair value as the price agreed in a sale and
purchase agreement dated 11 March 2010. The details of the
agreement is disclosed in note 42(b).

The recoverable amounts for the CGU of the business of
trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories and
provision of after-sale services as at 31 March 2009 and 2010
and the business of comics and animations development as
at 31 March 2009 were determined based on value-in-use
calculations, covering a detailed five-year plan, followed by an

extrapolation of expected cash flows at the growth rates below.
The growth rates reflect the long-term estimated average
growth rates for the product lines of the CGU.

R-ZT—ZTFE=A=+—HEELRDE
BREBHASELBMZTKREERT)
WREBZAABREERREE M
ARETEHA-FT-TF=A+—H
Z BB BEFTHE B - 53 F IS0
FE42(0) B R ©

R-BENFR_F—ZTF=HA=1+—
RIRERBEZHREAE S A REHR
ERBBEBUARR_FZTAF=A
St HEERPERREBRSES
Bz BB AEREEREE
BE REFRLOFAHE LKER
THEEEEH 2 ARRERE -G
BEXRRACELENERRZIRE
fhat PG RE-
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18. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued) 18.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

Comics and animations
development

BE-AEE 2

FEREEFEEZEFERZNOT
Trading of automobiles
and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services

FEREEEGR
BERBERRE BEHEZUREHREERE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-25 —TTHF —E-25 —ZETHF
Growth rates # KR N/ATE B 0% 15% 15.0%
Discount rates B3R X N/ATE A 7.2% — 15% 15% 15.0%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast
and research. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

At 31 March 2009, the aggregate goodwill impairment loss
of HK$127,246,000 was included under “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income statement and attributed to the Group’s comics and
animations development segment by HK$127.2 million, which

is mainly caused by the downturn of the economy.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the

value-in-use of the CGU above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates.

FTERZDREBERR URKERE
B A T 5 TR R KRB 58 2 T 45 10 BB TR A
BET -FTERA 2N E R R
N EFTE 2 T8R — 3 o FrER 2 B3R
EHBFATIES - W R EARE D &
E BB o

A_EEANF=A=+—8" Fﬁégﬂﬁ
& 18 4 §8127,246,000/8 TTEF AR &
EH&]\#&%’%WZFEWEZ&%%%JEP
VTHRAXREB 2 2ERPEHRS
/127,200,000 7T - F ZRARLLEE
o

MREE DRREEL BN 2 EREER
Fr ez ERARIN AREERERE
i$ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁm7%§ﬁﬁigmﬁ
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP HhEFEE-XEH

Copyrights Trademarks Total
IR 7 5L ast
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FETT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2008 RZTEENEFEEOA—H
Gross carrying amount REREE 15,455 151 15,606
Accumulated amortisation £ 5t §4 (4,440) (151) (4,591)
Accumulated allowance 2EREERE
for impairment (464) - (464)
Net carrying amount FEREE 10,551 - 10,551
Year ended HEZZTZTNF
31 March 2009 ZA=+T—BLEE
Opening net carrying FYFEEREE
amount 10,551 = 10,551
Exchange differences I 26 - 26
Additions NE 1,000 - 1,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries 4% 8% i & 2 7
(Note 35(b)) (Ff#£E35(b) ) = 5,801 5,801
Amortisation charges BT (1,932) (783) (2,715)
Allowance for impairment B (4,885) = (4,885)
Closing net carrying FROFIREE
amount 4,760 5,018 9,778
At 31 March 2009 and RZZBTNF
1 April 2009 =B=+—
—EENFMNA—H
Gross carrying amount BERMEE 16,506 5,952 22,458
Accumulated amortisation £ 51 #k &4 (6,861) (934) (7,795)
Accumulated allowance 2R EERE
for impairment (4,885) - (4,885)
Net carrying amount FEREE 4,760 5,018 9,778
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 10. Ht B EE-—XKEEH (#)
(Continueqd)
Copyrights Trademarks Total
hix 7 [ &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAT
Year ended BE_-_Z—ZF
31 March 2010 ZA=t+—HLEE
Opening net carrying FYFREE
amount 4,760 5,018 9,778
Additions NE - 1,800 1,800
Amortisation charges ST (4,760) (1,364) (6,124)
Closing net carrying FREREE
amount - 5,454 5,454
At 31 March 2010 R=ZZ-FF
=HA=+—H
Gross carrying amount IR E 16,506 7,752 24,258
Accumulated amortisation £ 51 #k 4 (11,621) (2,298) (13,919)
Accumulated allowance REREER
for impairment (4,885) - (4,885)

Net carrying amount FERMEE - 5,454 5,454




20.

BEEEERAT F3H2010 121
+| an
IS R =T
Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2010
INVENTORIES - GROUP 20. FE-XKH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx T T
Raw materials and consumables R MR OB FE 7,717 5,737
Work-in-progress E2H 21,658 24,111
Merchandised goods and comic books & & & &= = 55 102,046 56,913
131,421 86,761

21.

22.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group had reversed
HK$2,236,000 being part of inventory write-down made in
prior years that was subsequently not required as the inventory
was sold at its original cost. The amount reversed had been
included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FILM RIGHTS - GROUP

The film rights represent production and direct costs of
completed animations less amortisation. No allowance for
impairment was made during the year ended 31 March 2010
(2009: HK$31,869,000).

21.

BREFHR 2 BLFEEREXAL
& WEEBAEDHR BASEERE
E-_TTAF=-ZA=+—HBLEERD
B[O 13 78 & 5H2,236,000/8 7T ° 2 E# [0
ZHEEBFAZEEZARAREKZ (8
ERRAR]F o

ThRRE-F&H

FRIREREDEEDE 2 2EREEN
NRE - BE 2 —EE=R=+—
BIEFETEELREEE (ZTTA
4 31,869,000/ 7T ) °

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 22. ERESRE-FKEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Trade receivables EWE 5518 88,888 22,161
Less: Allowance for impairment of W EWE BRI E
trade receivables (1,625) -
Trade receivables — net U E 5 FRIBF R 87,263 22 161
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued) 22. EREZRE-FKEKEE (#)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date,
based on the invoice dates, and net of impairment losses, is as

ER#EE R B RMEREERRR 2 B
BEHRBARBER ZREDMAOT

follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT BT
0 — 30 days 0—30H 71,749 7,876
31 — 60 days 31—60H 8,622 8,377
61 — 90 days 61—90H 550 1,571
Over 90 days B0 H 6,342 9,337
87,263 22,161

The Group’s sales to its customers are mainly on credit. Except
as detailed below, the credit period is generally for a period of
two to three months for major customers. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

On 14 April 2009, the Group had entered into an agreement
with one of the major customers that approximately
HK$4,938,000 of the trade debts due from this customer at 31
March 2009 is to be settled by 22 installments. The directors
of the Company consider that the fair value of this trade
receivable is not materially different from its carrying amount
because both of this trade receivable balance and the discount
effect of this balance are is not significant to the Group.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the remaining trade receivables which are expected to be
recovered within one year is not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity

periods on their inception.

AEBTEUNEENTAERZPETR
ZBTXFLEN TEEFPZEER
H—RAE-_E=Z@R AKESRKHH
AU EEWE ZHRIBEITERIGEE A
RElEEEEERRARDEERR
SREEEASEHNENAMEH -

RZZETZNFHA+MNA AEEEE
—NEBRFIIN M B %
EER-_EZAFE=A=1+—HZE5
R 5K #94,933,00078 7T # PA22H3 2 HA f+F
HEEB-ARAEERE HRZER
BOREREBEYEUAEEN I
FEX REAAEREEETESK
=Ho

ARREEZRR ARHBTRKES K
B (AR —FAKE) f s ARE
EEHAEH MRFHRBZARER
HEEHETEERER -
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate:

22.

123

EWESRE-FAEER 2

FEWE 5B B T I AEEERD
EEBUIIN BB EZERE:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARB(TARK]) 20,308 3,147
United States dollars (“US$") Ex([ZEx]) 30,826 1,009
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade JEUNE SRR EEEZEEH T
receivables is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F N EE R - -
Allowance for impairment recognised B R4 NIER Z R EERE
during the year 1,625 =
Balance at end of the year FRRER 1,625 -

At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables for
evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective
basis. As at 31 March 2010, the Group has determined
trade receivables of HK$1,625,000 (2009: Nil) as individually
impaired. Based on this assessment, impairment loss of
HK$1,625,000 (2009: Nil) has been recognised. The impaired
trade receivables are due from customers experiencing financial
difficulties that were in default or delinquency of payments.

REREEH AEBRERERNRSE
BALERMERFEESERRESE
B-R-_E—TF=-ZA=+—H A%
E & E R E 5 3IE1,625,000/8 7T (=
STNF &) EEBRE - LRI FTE -
NEEE R EEE1,625,0000 T
(ZEZThF &) BREEBKESR
BAEHVBRR#EZZEFPRFK  EEX
TH M B R A s B R B K o
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued) 22. EREZRE-FKEKEE (#)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are RE B ARBEEWE 5508 2 R 2 AT
not impaired is as follows: N

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT T

Neither past due nor impaired A8 B IR A RE 65,258 12,670

Not more than 1 year past due m AR B iR — & 22,005 9,491

87,263 22,161

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired WAREH B ARRE 2 B E 57 IE TR
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent BA TRV EENCHE LIRS -

history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related B AERFEEKRE S FIETIRE
to independent customers that had a good track record with EAREEBERBARBEIBIYIEF
the Group. Based on the past credit history, management BEATEERE BEEMRE AR
believed that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect EEEZUELRERNEE  FHEEH
of these balances as there has not been a significant change R AR 2EHWE - B ARG
in credit quality and the balances were considered fully EHREEE ASE W EFE s A
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of RBEZEWE 5 RIBERRFTE EE

trade receivables past due but not impaired. i am e
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. € FEHREREMERT

RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY BH-AKEERAEATF
Group Company
rEE ZNYNE|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF —E-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHETT TET FHET
Deposits b 10,655 27,441 - -
Prepayments TEHHIE 84,811 8,825 74 =
Amount due from JFE 5 A 22 7 SRR
a related party* - 2,658 - -
Other receivables H At e U5k 0E 43,105 2,053 - =
138,571 40,977 74 -
* The related party is a relative to an executive director and the * ZRERBARBRITEFTERMLE
then executive director of the Company, Mr. Tong Kai Lap ERERBZATESTEIRBLEZH
and Mr. Wong Chun Keung respectively. The amount due was B ZERRFKEAERT £ ERIZ
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ZREE-
The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of ARRERRA BN EREET A
the amount due from a related party and other receivables K Eo A fE WK IR (TRERT RS — )
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not Z#ETF B AR R IR B H - B
materially different from their carrying amounts because these BREFRAZANERAREELEEX

balances have short maturity periods on their inception. R
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 24 BWBAERFAIRIE-—FEH
COMPANIES - GROUP

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTHET FHIT
Beijing Ying Shang Tong Trading TRBEBEES (a)
Development Limited T ERAERAR
(“Beijing YST”) (MHem&EmaEl) - 12,908
Bejing Shou Ying Tong Shang TtrREaRBEHNCEER (b
Trading and Commercial Limited A & (51 fE 4t & A
(formerly known as Beijing Ben Li EBERAA)
Group Limited) - 905

Beijing Heng Yu Da Ye IEREFARERE (b)

Investment Limited * BRRA 3,825 =
3,825 13,813

Notes: P & -

(8 As at 31 March 2009, Beijing YST was a company in which (@) RZFBTEAF=A=1t—0 &R
Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Q"), a substantial shareholder of the BREBRANAEERRIRIL
Company, had beneficial interests. The amount due was E(MHEEBHERSRBEZRD
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Al e ZERBFAREER 2R

REREE-

(o) The related companies are companies in which Mr. Qi has (b) ZEBERRS LR B S
beneficial interests. The amounts due are unsecured, interest- PA/NCIEE S G/ SV TG
free and repayable on demand. BB RIRBRMEE

t Unofficial name for translation purpose only i RIFEABHE ERBERZHT

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of ARREERS BN EUREET IR

the amount due from related parties which are expected to be (RN —FARKRE) 2 &FmEFABA

recovered within one year are not materially different from their fREF R AR WA EFRALZAR
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity ERAFAEYHRENER -

periods on their inception.
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 25 fTEERMIA-FAKEEREAR

GROUP AND COMPANY 7]
Group Company
rEE AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF —E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET THET FHET
Equity derivatives: IRADTET A -
— Call option included —SARBEEZ
in current assets R AR
(Note (a)) (FF3E()) - 698 - -
— Put option included —HARBEEZ
in current liabilities Foh AR
(Note (a)) (KizE(@a)) - 697 - =

Non-equity derivatives T AFERE B EF &

on early redemption RBREEZRE
options on convertible & [ Hi#E ~ FERR AR
notes included in PTET A (FIaE®D))

non-current liabilities
(Note (b)) 18,469 - 18,469 -
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BE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group entered into
an option deed in respect of an acquisition of further interests in
subsidiaries. With reference to the sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 August 2007, the vendors had jointly and severally
guaranteed that the aggregate audited profit after tax of Nanjing
Hongying, Shanghai Sanding and net of 49% of shareholding
in Suzhou Hongyang for each of year ended 31 December
2007 and 2008 was not less than HK$8,500,000 (the “Profit
Guarantee”). On 27 April 2009, the Group has decided not to
exercise the call option to acquire the remaining 49% interest in
Super Win Limited and therefore the call option was lapsed on
30 April 2009. As the relevant aggregate profit was unable to
meet the Guaranteed Profit, the vendor is not entitled to exercise
the put option and the put option was therefore automatically
lapsed.

As at 31 March 2009, the equity derivatives were not designated
as hedging instrument according to HKAS 39 and were
measured at fair value valuated by Roma by using the Black-
Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model
for the value of the derivative financial instruments were as

5. TEEMTIA-FAKRERELD
8 (&)

GEE

(a REBEEZZTZNF=A=+—HLEHF
AN E LU T B A Rl 2 REAME
Rl M — AR c 2BEAET
T+ENA-+BZEEHZE BA
EERAEESARBEREER L=
SHBE_TTHERZTNF+=
A=T—BIEFESF2RBIERN
B ER B 15 2 40% IR 1R 2 IS BAX S
ﬂ/ﬁ% 18,500,000/ 7T ([ FIR

FB - RZTETZAFMNA=-+LH"
$%@&ET{TEwuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬂlﬁ%Super
Win Limited&t T49%#Ez= « A Itk - 7R
HEER-TETNAEMNA=TAKXK -
B S A TR R EEIR FR A -
WE 7 EREITE G ERRE - SRR EIRE TS
EEEIESS®

RZZBZNFE=A=1+—8 REEH
SR ERIEI95E - RALTE T AW AR
5 5E A ¥ T A - B LARomafE fi £ &
HEEEENMFHEZARENE
FETTESR T AEEZREE 2 A

follows: BT :
2009
—EENF

Call option Put option
SR8 B R R B
Risk free rate 4 [ o | =R 0.043% 0.043%
Stock price (HK$’000) BRE (F7%T) 10,186 10,186
Exercise price (HK$'000) TfEE (FHxT) 10,186 10,186
Volatility B 8 59.94% 59.94%
Expected option life TEETEAREF 0.08 yearfF 0.08 yearfF
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(o)

On 18 January 2010, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with certain
independent third parties (the “Noteholders”) for subscription of
zero coupon convertible notes (the “Type Il CN”) issued by the
Company with an aggregate principal amount of HK$82,500,000.
Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Noteholders have
an option (the “Non-equity Put Option”) to redeem all or part
of outstanding principal amount on the third anniversary and
thereafter from the issue date of the Type Il CN. The Company
also has an option (the “Non-equity Call Option”) to require the
Noteholders to redeem all of outstanding principal amount on the
third anniversary and thereafter from the issue date of the Type Il
CN. Details of the Type Il CN are disclosed in note 31.

As at 26 January 2010 (the “Issue Date”), the Non-equity Put
Option and Non-equity Call Option which were not designated
as hedging instrument according to HKAS 39 were treated as
a single compound embedded financial instrument and were
measured at fair value valuated by Roma by using Binominal
Model Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model for the
value of the derivative financial instruments were as follows:

129

25. fTEEMIBE-—XKEERED
7 (#)

(0)

R-ZE—ZF—-A+=H ARAI&EE
TEBYFE=7 (REHEA) HRE
BAREETAEES 82,500,000
BLZEEBABRBEER([F -8
BMERREDFTZRBHE ([RE %
&) REREBS  RERESEAESR
EEE ([IFRAROEHRE]) - AT EK
RRARRE _FAIBRKREETH Y
RFAFEZAFER A REEEDNE
MREMLH W ARERESHE - AR BNE
BRERE (ERARESE]) T2
SREBFFA AR E Z SRR RE
THHERE=AFER A RERE
B2 REERSHE - F - AABK
SEZFBERMESIRE-

RZE—TF—A=+XB8 ([#7H
1) BIBEEASFAEAFE395E - JEAR
N R0 B e JE AR AN 2R B HR AR I R 4
IHEREIP TR HEAE—BAERR
SRt T B B LARomaf i — I8 18 A 5
BEEBRAMIGZANEFE-EH
MESHITAEEBEZER ZGAEN
T

As at As at

31 March 26 January

2010 2010

R=E—FF R=-B—ZF

=HA=+-—H —A=+7H

Risk free rate £ 2 A X 1.915% 1.841%
Discount rate BRI & 16.105% 16.031%
Volatility A 17.212% 18.490%
Year to maturity T 4 F B 4.825 yearstF 5 yearstF
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26.

27.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AT BANKS AND IN HAND - GROUP AND
COMPANY

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
bank deposits have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (2009: the Group and the
Company) (note 30). As at 31 March 2010, the deposits bore
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.05% per annum (2009:
0.01% to 0.77% per annum) which are closed to the market
interest rates. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon
the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair value of
the pledged bank deposits is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the short maturity period on their
inception and the bearing of market interest rates.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$117,853,000 (2009: HK$42,600,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB and is placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the
reporting date:

26.

27.
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EBEARITERUARBITRIR
EHEF-AEEREQF

RITHEFEZAETIRSHBITFEREI
FEFTE - AEBERAQNRE TFRITE
HEEEE URESAEE (=222
FAEBRAQNT ) ERZ BT
% (MizE30) R —_BE—TBE=F=1+—
B FRANT0.01%=E0.05% (—EZF
NE  FEFR0.01%E0.77% ) 2 F R =K
TR BRETB AR B RITER
BRENEEEITEERRER -

AEEEZERR ARCERRITHER
MR FAREEMAIE YiRkm5
MEREFE  BMREFFRRZAAERER
HETEERER-

AEBZHETERRSETRL2ED
117,853,000 L (Z 2 & N, F
42,600,000/ 70 ) Z $RAIT & 17 TI A A
REHE ERPEHZRITHR AR
MR EREBRAREMER - RIFEPEH
ZONEBEBIRGI R EE EERNEE
BRT AEEEERCRELEINE
HMEBZBROBGARELBAEEME
ﬁgo

BNEZRE-FARH

UTRENESHRARRE B KK
1

2010 2009

—E-FEF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH&T THT

0 - 30 days 0—30H 7,312 5,110
31 — 60 days 31—60H 7,567 1,653
61 — 90 days 61—90H 2,280 2,092
Over 90 days B0 H 3,645 4,088
20,804 12,943

All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying values are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

FERBRYBEREED At FEK
HEHERASEBMENABERES -
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28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 28. HRE EHERARHEME
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES - NRE-XEERAERQT
GROUP AND COMPANY

Group Company
rEH YN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZETNF —E-ZF —ZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBr FHET FHx FHET
Current portion: HREHD
Receipts in advance TBULFRIA 143,186 31,689 - =
Accrued charges fE5 & A 6,043 15,785 150 3,996
Other payables H e ZUR 28,563 4,921 - -
177,792 52,395 150 3,996
Non-current portion:  FEHREH 2 :
Receipt in advance TBUFRIE (FiFE(a))
(Note (a)) 1,309 1,424 - -
Accrued charges FEETE A (FtaEb))
(Note (b)) 3,900 0,495 - -
5,209 3,919 - -
The carrying amounts of current portion of accrued charges Bt ERAREMENREZREBD 2
and other payables are short-term and hence their carrying REHEBREE Bt  EHEKREEAE
value are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair WRAEEMERNREESE -

value.




132 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

BT ER&R M 5E
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE_ZT-ZTF=H=+—HIL¥E Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 28. W AIE EirBEAREM
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES - ENFE-AEBRAEAAQ T

l

GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Notes: B 5 -
(a)  Pursuant to the investment agreement entered into between the (a) WBEMAGESERR=MRTEER

Nanjing Hongying and MR m I EMEXFREREREEZE g,
the Group was entitled to receive government grants based on
156% of paid-up capital of the Nanjing Hongying within 3 years
from the date of its establishment. The grants are to be used
in the business development of Nanjing Hongying. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Nanjing Hongying’s operating tenure should
be not less than 15 years during which the principal place
of business should be retained in R F i E £ E.
The government grants received are amortised over 15 years
accordingly and they have remaining amortisation period of 12
years.

The Group enjoys a rent free period on leasing of office premises
and showrooms ranging from 3 to 5 years. This lease incentive
received is recognised in the profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments.

HBEERREGI L 2RE G A&
6 4 WEIR F RORE R B AN 16%
FHE BT R ROBER A
RETRP=F - ZHB I ERERBE
ZEBEE - BEZHE ARBEZ
REFHRALR AT HHAEEE
BRMEFAERNE RS BMERRH
B[ o L - P IKCER 2 BR T B 2154
BaE - MER T 2 #ESHHIR124F

REEREERLA=ZYPERREAN
FIEsFZRMH - HIABWRZEE
REIONBRERSEEFFIRER
ZARRERS
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29. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES - 29. BNBAELS RIE-—XEH

GROUP
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T
Amount due to a related company FE — R RAE A R FE
(Note (a)) (Fff7E(a)) - 8,565
Amount due to a shareholder e — R IRE FIE - 2,036
Amount due to a related party e — R BEE T IR
(Note (b)) (B 7 (o) ) 136 -
136 10,601
Notes: B 5 -
(a) The related company was a company in which Mr. Qi had () ZBAERARBLERBERERLZ
beneficial interests. NI
(b)  The related party is a relative to Mr. Tong Kai Lap. b) ZBEFEBERIEEZHRE-
Amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ERNREBEAEER REREZEERE
demand. = o
All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying values are FrEREAHBREBMES Bt - BEE
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. HEHERREEMERDEREE -

30. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 30. BE—AEERAXATF

Group Company
rEE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF —E-2F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHRE THR TH%E THR
Current RERE
Bank overdrafts, RITHEZ (HER)
unsecured - 1 - -
Bank loans, secured IRITER (FHEM) 11,923 13,423 - 7,500
Bank loans unsecured. $R1TE X (£EEKIH) 5,740 = - =
Other loans, unsecured  E fth & 3 (MK R) - 20,000 - =
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30. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continueqd)

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

30. BE—AXEBRARRQT (&)

AEERBEZERNE (FRERETHF

interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are: )R

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Bank overdrafts, unsecured RITE S (BIE) HIBOR + 1% Hong Kong
ERRTRAE Dollar Prime
FE+1% Rate + 0.5%
BILTHER
F 2 +0.5%
Bank loans, secured RITER(FER) HIBOR + 2.5% HIBOR + 1.0%
to BB IRITRZE
LIBOR + 2.5% FEE+1.0%

BEHRBITRAZE

B +2.5%

S

MBERITRZE

B +2.5%
Bank loans, unsecured RITE R (FEHR) 1.48% =
Other loans, unsecured HMER (EER) - 4%
As at 31 March 2010, certain bank deposits were pledged RZZE-—ZFF=HA=+—8 FTHRT

to banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (2009: the Group and to the Company). The bank loans
were also secured by corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and a subsidiary.

The carrying values of current borrowings are considered to be
a reasonable approximation of fair values due to their short-

term maturities.

FREERTRT UREAKE (=
ZRNE  ARERARR) BRZ K
RITEE - RITERITT AR A R —H
BRARRYL 2 EEEREER-

mMRETBEENERARDE A ERER
HERE S ELERRERS -
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30. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

31.

(Continueqd)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

30.

135

EBEE-AREBRAQT (&)

ZEEEZEEERTIEESIE:

Group Company
rEE P/ /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF —E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT FRET FHET
HK$ BT 8,724 33,424 - 7,500
European Euros (“‘Euro”) 7t ([BIT]) 5,740 = - =
Swiss Franc (“SF”) I 0K BB
([FmEI&BR]) 3,199 - - _
17,663 33,424 - 7,500
CONVERTIBLE NOTES - GROUP AND 31. TIRREE - AEERAQT

COMPANY

The Group and the Company have two types of convertible
notes. Certain convertible notes of the Group were issued
on 26 June 2008 (the “Type I CN”) upon completion of
the acquisition of the exclusive entitlements to all of the
economic benefits derived from the distributorships of
Bentley cars (the “BL Distributorship”), Lamborghini cars
(the “LB Distributorship”) and Rolls-Royce cars (the “RR
Distributorship”) and rights to control, manage and operate
Mei He and De Te. The Type | CN are convertible into
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.22 (subject to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure
changes), 4% per annum interest-bearing and matured on 26
June 2010 (the “Type | CN Maturity Date”). Unless previously
converted, the Company will redeem Type | CN on their
maturity date.

AEBEARRBEMBAIHRRER A
SEETAREZENR_ZFZTN\EXA
—tARBCEERKBENSE BE
A REREHRINEZ D #HEE (D
AMRTENRESHE]  [BBEER
Bl R [SEAETED HE])
PREES 2 2 BB M ot 2 BERAER] > A
REAREBRZENE EERREE
EZET((F-8URRER])-F
— BRI BRREEAZ0.22B T (AT #E
ARBEHRUIFRE) 2ERAER
1,200,000,000% 28 2 &) E @K » & 5 7
FAFFHENE IR _—_F—FFXA
—+HRB ([F-ErRREEIHA L)
BH-FRIFZAEEAE  BRIKARA
HREPEBEOE B RRER-
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - GROUP AND 3. TR EBE - FEBRAQF

COMPANY (continued)

The Type Il CN of the Group and of the Company were issued
on 26 January 2010 (the “Issue Date”) for general fund raising
purpose. The Type Il CN are convertible into 150,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.55 (subject
to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure changes), interest-
free and will be matured on 26 January 2015 (the “Type Il CN
Maturity Date”). The principal terms of the Type Il CN were as
follows:

(@)  The outstanding principal amount of the Type Il CN might
be converted at the option of the Noteholders in whole
or in part into ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each in the
Company at any time on or after 1 April 2010 up to the
Type Il CN Maturity Date.

(b) The Noteholders might early redeem all or part of the
Type I CN on the third anniversary from the Issue Date
and thereafter at the redemption amount equal to their
outstanding principal amount plus a premium of 10% per

annum of outstanding principal amount from the Issue
Date.

(%)

AEBERARRE ZEARBREEBE
T—REEMN_Z—ZFTF A=+
B ([Z/TEHE]) BT - FMRRE
B AT 420.5578 7T (AT gt & AR B & gk
LEBIFAEE ) 2 (B 4% 5 ¥ 4150,000,0008%
RABEBER TEFNES R =T
—HFE—A-+B ([E_HFrag=E
BREHADAH - F_EaBREE Y
BT

(@) B_HUHRREBEZAEELRD
BARN_ZE-—TFOA—Hz&kZ
BREF_HAAUBREREIHA
BEREEEFAAEREZ LI
738 SRR B B X E {50.00278
TLZ BB

b) BEBAATRBTAWZE=
BEERZAREKRTEDS
BREHE - WAARES  HEE
SRS KBRS IR
A EHBT A MREE0%
o
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - GROUP AND 1. TEREE - FAEERAQT
COMPANY (cContinued) (%)

() The Company might redeem all of the Type Il CN on the
third anniversary from the Issue Date and thereafter at the
redemption amount equal to their outstanding principal
amount plus a premium of 10% per annum of outstanding
principal amount from the Issue Date.

(d)  Unless previously converted or redeemed, the Company
will redeem the Type Il CN on the Type II CN Maturity
Date at the redemption amount equal to their outstanding
principal amount plus a premium of 10% per annum of
outstanding principal amount from the Issue Date.

The fair value of the liability component of the Type I CN
was calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note and without containing similar non-
equity derivative features and the equity conversion feature.
Details of the fair value of the non-equity derivative has been

disclosed in note 25. The residual amount of the Type Il CN,
which is calculated by deducting the liability component of
HK$63,175,000 and non-equity derivatives of HK$18,469,000
(note 25) from the principal amount of HK$82,500,000,
represented the value of the equity conversion component and
is included in capital reserve in the owners’ equity.

© ARBARBTHHRZF=BF
Eme B REKREBEMAS 1
AHMEEE BEERESENAE
BASBMAREERNSBAHELT
HERBF10% 2 RIE -

(d) PBRIEZAIEERBKER @ FAIA
/“7#1#”—*ET%HXK¢J§§JH§E

{go

F_HEABRREREGERD 2ANE
DERTEBERUERAITELTAR
25 TTﬂﬁﬂx$RTﬁ"fH¥5Z$ﬁ—r#
ARREBRER MG EFTHE-3F
RASTE T B A AEZFIBRHFE25
BR-F_HABERER G EE
% 7N & %882,500,0007% 7T 1 b & & 20
fﬁ63175ooo,%7z&3EH§$méEIE<
18,469,000/ 7T (KizE25) 51 & - HER
R HRE Mﬁz{%ﬁiﬁﬁrkﬁﬁﬁ}\%
mANZERGFEE-
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - GROUP AND 1. TEREE - FAEERAQT
COMPANY (continued) (#&)

The liabilities components of the convertible notes recognised

ERERAMBERRRAER 2 TREE

in the consolidated statements of financial position are BRAREMOFTENT
calculated as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FU R 183,668 -
Issuance of the convertible notes BT R R =R 63,175 235,492
Conversion to shares of the Company X3 A7 A &l % {5 (188,837) (60,141)
Effective interest expenses for the year AT A S5 X (H:E9)
(Note 9) 12,134 16,143
Over-provision of effective interest BEFEERANEMAEZZ
expenses in prior years (Note 9) FRRE R (MI5E9) (795) =
Interest paid BAF A (4,394) (7,826)
Balance at end of the year F R4k 64,951 183,668
The fair value of the liability component of the Type Il CN at the FE_HBRREBEEEHRSNETAH

Issue Date amounted to approximately HK$63,175,000. The
fair value is calculated using discounted cash flow method at a
rate of 16.03%.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Type | CN at the
principal amount of HK$198,000,000 were converted into
ordinary shares of the Company and total number of ordinary
shares converted was approximately 900,000,000 (Note 33).

Interest expenses on the Type | CN and Type Il CN are
calculated using the effective interest method by applying the
effective interest rate of 10.1% and 16.03% respectively to the

liabilities components.

Z NI EH £63,175,00078 T ° A LB

I BEIR IR & 7 = 7% # Al £16.03%5T
Ho

REBEE-ZE—ZEF=A=+—HLHF
E**$$>§E198000000/%71:Z%*’£5
TMREREABAARRRIERAR B
H ¥R 2 il AR 48 #U4Y £900,000,0004%
(HI5E33) °

£ FARRERRE - BTRRER
ZRSBL DREBRFEE  KARM
5 2 EHRFIE S R10.1% R 16.08%3

s
H o
i
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32. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP AND COMPANY 32. EEHRE-XKEEBR XD T
IREFL TR JH IR 15 B &% - (£ A TEHi & [0

EREZRR ZERARE BT
HEERE -

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when
the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

EEREEE/ (ABEIRFRAZEY

The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the

year is as follows: LU
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHT
At beginning of the year REA] (22) 3,702
Exchange differences ME W 2= &E - 14
Deferred taxation credited to profit FrABZE 2 BLERIA
or loss statement (Note 10) (FF=E10) 65 441
Under-provision in respect of prior year @7EE E & ET 2
(Note 10) (HEE10) (249) -
Write-down of deferred tax assets R A T A IR A A
(Note 10) (FI7E10) - (4,003)
Attributable to reduction in tax rate b IR FE (S
(Note 10) (FF=E10) - (176)
At end of year RELR (206) (22)
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32. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP AND COMPANY 32. EZEHE-AXEKEBER A QT

(Continued) (#&)
The movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities (prior to EEHBEEBE (RA—#HMHmE
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction and RRA—SEREZEAEE)RER
the same group company) during the year is as follows: ZEBMT
Deferred tax assets BREBIEEE
Group Company
N PN
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total Tax losses
MERBRE BIEEE i BIEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHTT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2008 R-ZZEZNFEA—H (5) 4,393 4,388 835
Exchange difference bE N EH - 14 14 =
Charged to profit or loss 7E1825 R 0% = (184) (184) -
Write-down of deferred ~ MURELEFH B E &
tax assets 5 (4,008) (4,003) (787)
Attributable to reduction & 135 FE 15
in tax rate - (215) (215) (48)
At 31 March 2009, R-EZAF
1 April 2009 and =B=+—8"
31 March 2010 ZEEAFMNA-BK
—E-2F

=R=t-H = - - -
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32. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP AND COMPANY 32. EZEHE-AXEKEBER A QT

(Continued) (%)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
Group
r5H
Accelerated Other
tax intangible
depreciation Tax losses assets Total
0328 B4 18 47 B BEERE HUEEBKEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBIT THBT THBT THBT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZNFHA—A (103) (82) 871 686
Charged/(credited) to BTG
profit or loss (st AB#) 119 77 (821) (625)
Attributable to reduction & % 15 FE 15
in tax rate 6 5 (50) (39)
At 31 March 2009 and R =TT hF
1 April 2009 ZA=+—HEK
—ZETAEMA—H 22 - - 22
Credited to profit or loss sF Az (65) = = (695)
Under-provision in BAFERETE
respect of prior years 249 - - 249
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-FF
=B=+-—-H 206 - - 206
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32. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP AND COMPANY 32. EZEHE-AXEKEBER A QT

(Continueqd)

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

(%)
N v_éaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁjﬂ,i%ﬁgm Z &R

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx T T
Deferred tax assets recognised in EE’\ FEMBIRARERZ
the consolidated statement of EERIIRE E
financial position - -
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in EE’\ A ISR R AER
the consolidated statement of BT IEEE
financial position (206) (22)
Net deferred tax liabilities R IA B EFEE (206) (22)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority and the entity intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

At the reporting date, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of HK$22,661,000 (2009: HK$45,963,000) available for
offset against future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised (2009: Nil) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams of those subsidiaries which incurred these tax
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$6,304,000 (2009: HK$2,039,000)
have not been established for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries
because the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it is not probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Such
unremitted earnings for investments in subsidiaries totalled
HK$126,080,000 at 31 March 2010.

i B BORBIITH N 2 FEF A BN HITR 1]
BERFINBHERE  MELEMEHR
BhE-MBKE BZEREENF
HMELETE ARKEREENFER
B AEERREEREAEEE-

REsEH AEBA MR PHE
[E51822,661,0008 7T (Z & & N, F -
45,963,000/ 7T ) A A {E K 88 oK 2K & 2%
Hamh ERELENEHEBE WS
QﬁZi&XiﬁﬁUXﬁ%%ﬂi%ﬂZ%{ 7&
SEVERAREHELEE (=
FE)o

ERARREFETHBRARZEE
BR MEBEZBAIRAERAR
A5 R B D - MY EZEH B A AR
BERE R FE R 2 T8I0 B B AL IR TR
1B B 186,304,000/ 7T (—BEE H &
2,089,000 L) - R=ZZE—FF=A
=t+t—H ZEHBRARKREZABR
E R4 £ A126,080,000/% T °
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33. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 33.

BRAE-AEERAEART

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EERYAE £ g
HK$’000
FHET
Authorised: EERA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each BRREE0.00275 7T 2 L i ik
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009, RZZEZNFMOA—AR-
1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 “EEAFE=A=+—8"
“ETNFOA-BEK
—T-FTFE=F=+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRARRA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each BIREE0.00278 7T 2 T i ik
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZEN\FMNA—H 1,086,152,850 2,172
Issue of shares upon acquisition of 1 B B /B 2 R BF B 1T AR (D)
subsidiaries 400,000,000 800
Issue of shares upon conversion of RN E B R TR
convertible notes 300,000,000 600
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 RZZEZAF=ZRA=+—HK
“EENFRA—H 1,786,152,850 S} 2
Issue of shares upon conversion of Rpnn R EREETRMD
convertible notes* 900,000,000 1,800
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-—ZEFE=A=+—H 2,686,152,850 5,372

* During the year, the Type | CN with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$198,000,000 were converted into 900,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each at a conversion price of
HK$0.22 per share.

* F R AEEEA 198,000,000 T 2
FE—RARRERIR TR ESR0.22
78 JT % H 32 £900,000,0000% = I E (&
0.002% T 2 L iBAR -
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34. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 4. FE-—FEERERAT

34.1 Group 341 XEH
Special reserve 55 e

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued for the acquisition under a group reorganisation in
1997.

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the
provisions of section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses. The remaining balance of
the contributed surplus amounted to HK$49,394,000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 July 2009, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$260,000,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. On the same date, the Company applied an
amount of approximately HK$206,327,000 from the
contributed surplus account against the accumulated

losses.

AEBEZRHRIFEFEEARANE
MBARKRNE AZERMH 2E
BER-NANEFETEEEA
BRBEMET ZRNEEME
ZER-

A B

BEARNGTR-_ZEZTMENAT
HRETZRREEFASLBEBZ
HRRZER AQAREERE
—MN—FREEFI6KEZRTE
18 E A% 17 5 {8 B 3 49286,300,000
B U ZeBERERARIZ
BABBEAN-BER  KABRSH
A B4 BR F B 49236,906,000/5
T H RAT SR - A RSB Z T
#4577 549,394,000 T °

BEARAR=ZZZENF LA
ST+ —HROZRRAFKRE L
B FFRDRZERE - AR A AR
15 74 {8 Bl J8 £9260,000,0007% Tt *
WHZESEEREARARA Z2HBA
HBHREAN-BH ARABARA
#4 BR P 8 HH #9206,327,0007% 7t A
K H RETEE o
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34. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 34. BE-AXEEREQTF (&)
(Continued)

34.1 Group (Continued) 34.1 A&EBE (&)

EEERE

AEEZ AT B EARRTE
B R RREBEN DB - RIEA
ARFENBARSEEBER
AR ZERARAGERERKRME
P& M A D H10% 5 BL 205 €
B EEREEREREMEAZ
50% #3 Lt ° 5% fe th8 A1 A {E HRL AT )

Statutory reserve

The Group’s statutory reserves represent appropriations
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
In accordance with the respective articles of association
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required
to appropriate amount not less than 10% of their profits
after income tax to statutory reserves each year, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.

Such a reserve may be used to reduce any losses FEE 2 BRI ERBERAE-
incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.
34.2 Company 34.2 XN F
Retained
profits/ Proposed
Share Capital Contributed accumulated final
premium* reserve’ surplus™ losses* dividend Total
y o RE57,/ S )
Rt B BARGEE BABB 2t BB RERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT T T THT
At 1 April 2008 R=ZZNFMA—B 213,630 = 100,680 10,138 = 324,448
Issue of shares upon acquisition of  WEEHI B2 18 1T 1D

subsidiaries 219,200 - - - - 219,200
Issue of convertible notes upon W BB HI B A B 21T

acquisition of subsidiaries HREER - 149,579 - - - 149,579
Issue of shares upon conversion of AR AR Z Kk

convertible notes ki 96,936 (37,395) - - - 59,541
Interim dividends paid HEZ-ZT)/\FAA=tHILt

for the period ended BEBEAPARS (FF14)

30 September 2008 (Note 14) - - - (17,862) - (17,862)
Transactions with owners BREARTZIRS 316,136 112,184 - (17,852) - 410,458
Loss for the year and total AEEHBERAFEEHZE

comprehensive income/(loss) WA/ (B#B)

for the year - - - (198,603) - (198,603)
At 31 March 2009 and R-_ZTAE=ZA=+-HK

1 April 2009 “ZTNFENA-A 529,766 112,184 100,680 (206,327) - 536,303
Equity component in convertible BETTRREEZERTH

notes issued - 1,443 - - - 1,443
Issue of shares upon conversion of SR ATARRERHTRR

convertible notes 300,016 (112,184) - - - 187,832
Interim dividends paid HE-TZTNENA=TH

for the period ended IEBEENFHARE

30 September 2009 (Note 14) (BizE14) - - - (13,431) - (13,431)
Waiver of interest on convertible —ZRERERRARR

notes by a shareholder £ V) - 3,508 - - - 3,508
Transactions with owners HERAETLIRS 300,016 (107,233) - (13,431) - 179,352
Profit for the year and total AEERARAFELHZE

comprehensive income WA

for the year \ - - - 3,263 - 3,263
Reduction of share premium BB & B (260,000) - 260,000 - - -
Elimination of contributed surplus A BB 25 B

against accumulated losses - - (206,327) 206,327 - -
Proposed final dividend for the year HZE-Z-—FT£=fA=+—H

ended 31 March 2010 (Note 14) EEEZBERARE

(Hizz14) - - (8,059) - 8,059 -
At 31 March 2010 R-B-25=R=+-H 569,782 4,951 146,294 (10,168) 8,059 718,918




146 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

B ER&R M 5E
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE_Z-ZTF=H=+—HIL¥E Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

34. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 3. EFE-ERXEEREAQT (&)
(Continueqd)

l

34.2 Company (Continued) 342 XAF (&)

*

* ARBZBARBELE:

The contributed surplus of the Company consists of:

HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food Culture
Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares which were issued under a group
reorganisation in 1997; and

pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004,
the Company reduced its share premium by an amount
of approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with
the provisions of section 46 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and transferred the same amount to the
contributed surplus account of the Company. On the same
date, the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses. The remaining balance of
the contributed surplus amounted to HK$49,394,000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 July 2009, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$260,000,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. On the same date, the Company applied an
amount of approximately HK$206,327,000 from the
contributed surplus account against the accumulated
losses.

BRERRUEBER AT RE
B AR Z BEGS BEEFER
ARRR—ANEFETERE
AR BTN ZHEMREZE
¥851,286,000/%8 7T : &

BEARBN-_ZEZMENA
THRTZRFEAFAS L@
BZREIRER AQERE
BRE-NAN—FAREFE4L6
16 2 3 7€ 15 H AR 10 5 (B HIR 40
286,300,0007% 7t * ¥ #% 7% & %8
EEREARRNAZHBARKRIRA -
ENERN/NS TS Ok
) #9236,906,0007% 7t A K 5 2
ATEE - BABBRZFBETR
49,394,000 JT

BEARBAR=ZZZTNELA
S+t—HETZREAFAE
ERBZHIRER  AARH
H & 15 5 18 Bl Bl £9260,000,000
BT WHEZeEERELRR
RIZEBABBRERN-RA &K
ARIRBARBERBELY
206,327,000/ 7T LA 88 R 518

Be

# These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s reserve of 3 W EREREEAQRATEMRRTERA
approximately HK$710,859,000 (2009: HK$536,303,000) in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

ZANA A FE#EE#710,859,00058 7T (=
T T 4 : 536,303,000/ 7T ) °
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BHE—

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP

(a)

Acquisition of car business

On 22 February 2008, Sparkle Roll Motors Limited
(“SBRM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Car S&P”) with an
independent third party to acquire the BL Distributorship,
LB Distributorship and RR Distributorship and the
exclusive rights to control, manage and operate Mei He
and De Te (the “Car Acquisition”). The principal activities
of Mei He and De Te are described in note 17 above. The
acquisition was completed on 26 June 2008.

Mei He and De Te contributed aggregate revenue of
approximately HK$459,203,000 and aggregate net profit
of approximately HK$55,381,000 to the Group for the
period from 26 June 2008 to 31 March 2009.

If the Car Acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2008,
the Group’s revenue would have been approximately
HK$686,176,000 and loss for the year ended 31 March
2009 would have been approximately HK$74,342,000.
These pro forma information were for illustrative purpose
only and were not necessarily indication of revenue and

results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the Car Acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2008 nor were they intended to be
projection of future results.

(a)

147

35. XBEH—FKHE

WiB R E X

RZZEZENFZA=Z+ZH 'K
A Az 2 &K B A aSparkle Roll
Motors Limited ([SRM ) B2 37
E=FilvtmE ([REEEH
) A EEN B RIERE
MIEE B )T B IR 3 & 55 Hy 5 iy
BRI UARESRERFZIE
HiltE IR R R ER
([WEREEK]) - E& RER
ZEEHEBEHN LT o YhkE
FBEER_ZEENFAAZ+RN
H 71:52 °

XERBEER-_ZFFENEXA
Z+ARBEZZEENF=A=1—
HHRARNEEERM At IaL
459,208,000 7T & & & 48 F 49
55,381,000/ T ©

MR TEEBEENR_ZEZN
FMA—H AEEZ KRR
686,176,000 T MEAZE_TF
NE=ZA=+—BItEEZEIE
154 574,342,000/ T - s Z %
BRHEMF ARG - AR AW
WHER=_ZEZN \FHA—HBRE
B AR BB ED 2 RE
BEERZ N THRIEABREE
2 TEA -
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP

(Continueqd)

(a)

Acquisition of car business (Continued)

(a)

Details of the Car Acquisition were set out in the circular
of the Company dated 20 March 2008. Details of the net
assets acquired and goodwill of the Car Acquisition are as

35. ¥ -—£E #)

W EER (&)

Yol 5 B R 2 B E BB A
AAR=BENF=A-TAT
B2 TR 2 O

follows: ABEFERBEZFBEOAT
HK$’000
FHET
Net cash paid (Note (i)) EAFR S (MFEG) 34,227
Fair value of 400,000,000 ordinary shares £ %1728 A @] 2 400,000,0000% & i@ A% 2
of the Company issued (Note (ii)) A B CHFEi)) 220,000
Fair value of the Type | CN issued BERTE-HIBRREBRZANE 385,071
Total purchase consideration BERERTE 639,298
Direct cost relating to the acquisition HZ IH I B B R« B 2,453
Fair value of aggregate net assets BRAEBAEBEFBECANE
acquired (61,072)
Goodwill (Note 18) P2 (MsE18) 580,679
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP 35. S —FK&EE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Acquisition of car business (Continued) (a) WEBSREXEXK(EZ)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities RZFEZENFRNAZ+H (K

WHETEXBER) ZA#AEE
RBEzZARABEREEREREBRE
EBTAT 2 B EREENT

as at 26 June 2008, the date of completion of the Car
Acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts
immediately before completion of the Car Acquisition are

as follows:
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
B AZ
ARE FREE
HK$ 000 HK$’000
T T T TT
Mei He ES)
Property, plant and equipment Y% s R E 718 718
Other intangible assets HihEmEEE 14,339 14,339
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 RIE K&
H b e U R IA 74,825 74,825
Cash and cash equivalents Be kRS EEER 9,596 9,596
Trade and other payables ERE Z%IER
H A FE A 5RI8 (70,809) (70,809)
28,669
Net assets acquired BEEAZESFE 28,669
De Te =
Property, plant and equipment VI S R s 3,499 3,499
Inventories EE 1,348 1,348
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 5k18 K
H fth & U 5/ IE 27,379 27,379
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReSEIER 1,956 1,956
Trade and other payables ERE S3IE R
H b e~ 3R I8 (1,779) (1,779)
32,043
Net assets acquired EBABESE 32,403
Aggregate net assets acquired EBABTTEEFE 61,072
Total cash consideration BERERLRE (34,227)
Direct cost relating to the EAFZIH I BE AR B v BB P AN
acquisition (2,453)
Cash and cash equivalents EBANBARZ
in subsidiaries acquired e kReEHEEER 11,552
Net outflow of cash and HekReFEBEBEEZ
cash equivalents DR E (25,128)
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP 35. XBEH—FKE (2
(Continueqd)
(a) Acquisition of car business (Continued) (a) WEREZEK (&)

Notes: B =E -

()  The Group had paid HK$50,000,000 by cash as part of the ()  AEEBX1I50,000,0008TH
consideration of the Car Acquisition. According to the Car RERKBABERE 2 M B K
S&P, before the official approval of the transfer of the BL E-REAEEEHH BEE
Distributorship, LB Distributorship and RR Distributorship, MITERIERE WEERAIER
all profits generated from 1 January 2008 onwards from IR K S T AR R B ORI IR
such businesses were entitled to the Group. Before ABER ZFEXBFA-FTN
the completion of the Car Acquisition, approximately F—A—BRESZMHA N
HK$15,772,000, in aggregate, was generated from the car REEME - N ETER
trading business and was offset with the consideration. Bal - ABBEBERBELS RN
Details of terms of the Car S&P were included in the 16,772,000/ 7T - A (EK I -
circular of the Company dated 20 March 2008. MEEE RS R IFRRA

AAMZTEZNEFE=ZA=+HBH
B2 KA o

(i) The fair value of the new ordinary shares of the Company (i) ARFRBBTZHEBBZARL
issued was based on the published closing share price at BN FEIT B A 2 MR (E
the date of issue. T8

(i) The fair values of Type | CN were determined by the (i) FRABREREZALMEHRA
directors of the Company with reference to a valuation RAIERESE B EE(H{ER
performed by Norton Appraisal Limited, a firm of 1T E BB E AR A R PR
independent professional valuers. BERERE-

(v) The BL Distributorship, LB Distributorship and RR (v) EBEFRERERE BEEEAE
Distributorship are intangible assets acquired which R R ABRTAEREER
had not been recognised separately from goodwill. The 3 # G2 7 R ) AR 2 W P
directors of the Company were of the opinion that the BEVEE -ARAESFRR
fair value of these intangible assets should be linked with HERTVEEZ ARERRLEE
the key management running the car business and thus, NEXBZETEREEEEGRM
for the intangible assets alone, it could not be measured Uk - A E E IR R i B
reliably. The goodwill arising from the acquisition was also stE - WEMEL ZAEINKEB
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the market B TIZ 2 TBRT AR R B
in the PRC and the expected continuing growth of the REZERFRER-

economy of the PRC.
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP
(Continueqd)

(b)

Acquisition of watch business

On 8 August 2008, SRW&J entered into certain
agreements with an independent third party to acquire
100% equity interest in RMSH and an exclusive and non-
transferrable licence to use the trademark in the PRC for
5 years (the “Watch Acquisition”). The principal activity
of RMSH is described in note 17. The Watch Acquisition
was completed in 8 August 2008.

RMSH contributed revenue of approximately HK$383,000
and net profit of approximately HK$34,000 to the Group
for the period from 8 August 2008 to 31 March 2009.

If the Watch Acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2008,
the Group’s revenue would have been approximately
HK$612,495,000 and loss for the year ended 31 March
2009 would have been approximately HK$80,678,000.
These pro forma information were for illustrative purpose
only and were not necessarily indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the Watch Acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2008 nor were they intended to be

projection of future results.
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35. ¥ -—X£E #)

(b)

W B R TS

RZZFFNFNANR - BHEK
KEEBYE =LA T
WHERE LE 2R A S kR
TRERABEZBER LTS E
RretiE REIRF ([RBEERE
1) o I%E L2 T BEBFENH
17 WEBEREBD R _FEN
FNAANBTERK-

mEEER=_ZFFTNFENANAR
E_ETNF=-ZA=+—HHMH
7N B B B & #9383,0007% 7T
Ko 46 F1) 4934,0007%8 T °

M EEREBEER SN
FOA—R AEE WSO R
612,495,000 c MEE=ZZT T
NF=ZA=+—HIEFEZEIE
15 %) 480,678,000/ 7T ° % E B &
ERHEMHBEAE - BT A8 AW
WBEEEER _ZZTN\FN A
—BEZEK AEEERAES 2
e R4S & B IEIR - IV RIER
HigZEE 2788 -
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP 35. S —FK&EE (&)

(Continueqd)
(b) Acquisition of watch business (Continued) (b) WEBE&EKERK(ZF)
Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill of the WHEERER  EBAEEEE
Watch Acquisition are as follows: REBZFHBRT
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
WU EE A 2
ARE REE
HK$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment Y% s R E 32 32
Other intangible assets HfibhEmpEE 5,801 =
Inventories BE 4,297 4,297
Other receivables H b fE 5k IE 308 308
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeFEHEE 877 877
Other payables H i & 5K I8 (315) (315)
5,199
Net assets acquired BEBABEFE 11,000
Total cash consideration BERERE (11,000
Cash and cash equivalents EEAMBARIZEREE X
in a subsidiary acquired ReFMEIEAE 877
Net outflow of cash and RekBFeEEEE 2R
cash equivalents FE (10,123)
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36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. KEHEAE
At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments REH  AEBRTA BEKERE
payable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases T Z R R SEEMRE FIBEAER T ERS
are as follows: ZI| Hf -
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Within one year —F A 32,423 23,137
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEEFERF
(BRERMSE) 58,858 46,219
After five years AFENE 8,716 11,846
99,997 81,202
The Group leases a number of office premises and staff NEERBEKELEERRZBRAET
quarters under operating leases. The leases run for an initial MENBEIBEE - HEVFLAH—ZFH
period of one to five years. Fo
The Company does not have any significant operating lease AARIWEEMERSERE RS-
commitments.
37. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS - 37. EXA R HMAR - X EH
GROUP
Group
rEH
2010 2009
= —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y B RBRBERAD
contracted but not provided for BAREA 682 =
Investment in productions of BERECIREBEEA
animations contracted but not BAREA
provided for - 1,226

REEESRBEERZETOHEER
B R_TE-TFE=-_A=t—H K&
B 2 AR N 3 BN R R LR AR R
Rt —fERE-

According to certain distributorship agreements for trading of
luxury goods, as at 31 March 2010, the Group has committed
to open nine flagship stores and eleven boutiques during the
terms of the distributorship period.

AR A AT B E A J H Al g

The Company does not have any significant capital and other

commitment.
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS - 38.

39.

COMPANY

As at 31 March 2010, the Company has executed corporate
guarantees to certain banks with respect to general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
approximately HK$22,000,000 (2009: HK$7,000,000). At the
reporting date, no provision for the Company’s obligation
under the financial guarantee contracts has been made as
the directors considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the borrowings would be in default.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
GROUP

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

39.

BBRERREN-FRQF

R-_E—FTFE=ZA=+—H ARQF
REETHBEBRARAERZ —RBITE
B 422,000,000 L (ZFZT N F:
7,000,000/ 7T ) A& T #R1T%8 3 A Al
ReRIHER AREBRAE T KA GE
HIRHEREERERZ BN iR &5 A
RANMERERE 2 BEETIREE-

BELTZXSZ -A5E

0 B R F B R A 210 B
£ AR HEE T FHIEA
%5

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=2 FET FE T
Payment of comic script fee ST —ABREZ
and bonus to a shareholder B EEBIANE NICAL (a) 3,372 4,668
Payment of salary and TR TFHEESZHFSR
administrative fees to THER
related parties (b) 1,300 1,375
Payment of consultancy fee to Xt FEEH 2 K AEH
related parties (c) - 313
Sales of watches to directors MEFHEEER (d) 542 479
Sales of automobiles and ) — {7 AR R 85 & )9 8 Rk ik
watches to a shareholder (e) 4,338 6,464
Payment of management fee YR FEEARZEREER
and office expenses to MAERZ
a related company (f) 1,091 1,217
Payment of rental expenses to a X F —HREER A Z
related company e (f) 200 =
Payment of agency fee to TR THEARCRER
related companies () 93 289
Purchase of inventories from MEEARRETE
a related company (9) 11,419 868
Receipt of other income from a  Ht/5E8E R IEE I E A &)
car distributorship from 2 E AU A
a related company (h) 9,312 24,904
Receipt of other income from REE —WTERI—F
a shareholder regarding sale IR 2 B AU A
of a car (i) 1,887 -
Impairment of receivables FE W SRR R (B 0) - 82
Loan from a shareholder —ZRERZER (k) 15,000 =
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
GROUP (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year, the Group paid comic script fee and bonus to
Mr. Wong Chun Loong, a shareholder of the Company in the
capacity as chief creative officer pursuant to the relevant service
agreement signed with the Group.

During the year, the Group paid salary and administrative
expenses to certain relatives of a director and the then director
of the Company, Mr. Tong Kai Lap and Mr. Wong Chun Keung
respectively. The amounts paid to these related parties are for
the purpose of normal course of business. No individual persons
received over HK$1,000,000 in each of the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, consultancy fee was paid
to two companies, one of which is controlled by Mr. Tong Kai
Lap and his family members and the other is controlled by Mr.
Ko Chi Keung, a former director of the Company during last year
and his family members.

During the year, sales of watches were made to three (2009:
two) directors of the Company, Mr. Tong Kai Lap, Mr. Zheng Hao
Jiang and Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong.

During the year, the Group sold certain watches and an
automobile to a shareholder, Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group paid rents, management fee, office
expenses and agency fee to related companies which are owned
and controlled by Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group purchased certain inventories from a
company of which the beneficial owner is Mr. Qi.
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30. BERTZREZ —AFAEE (&)

W

FR - BAARNRRIREEIRE LA LAIE
BEZEHBTERNEEET 2B
R MAEERE SR EEA
B RAEAL o

FA AEERARAETFERILLE
ERARBERETESTERA L
ZETHBIXNFERTHEAX X
NFREEET 2B NEREER
P - B B A £ & F IR ERGER 3B
1,000,000/ 7T °

BHE_ZTAF=RA=+—HILtFE
N HAEMAEXN FREXE - EP
— BB R REK S
S—RABEFEEZARRAES
AR R HREEMK B

FR - AEBRARR=F (=TT
FWMB)EEFMLEL BEITE
ERENRE L E R -

FA - ARBRARRELEHES TE
R —WRE

FR - AEBERBRELER RESZ
MEARXMNES EEE HAER
MRREE -

FNAKBRASEEESBESHEEALZ
REABEETHEE-




156

RIS M et

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

39.

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
GROUP (continued)

(h)  During the year, the Group received the profit generated from a
company of which the beneficial owner is Mr. Qi.

(i) The amount represented profit from sale of a car transferred from
Mr. Qi.

1) During last year, Sparkle Roll Enterprises Limited (“SRE”) was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. SRE was owned as to
10% by the Group and 90% by a company which was owned by
Mr. Qi. Upon the incorporation, the Group injected HK$78 for the
shareholding. During last year, allowance for impairment of other
receivables of HK$82,000 was made.

(k) During the year, the Group entered into a loan agreement
pursuant to which the Group borrowed a interest-free loan from a
shareholder of the Company. The amount was fully repaid during
the year.

(1) The directors of the Company considered that the directors’
remuneration as set out in note 11 is equivalent to the Group’s
key management’s remuneration.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks include market risk (including currency risk and
interest risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Company’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

39.

40.
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BEIZ2RZ—AEEH (#)

() FAR AEBEWRIRESEEERERE
BAZRRRFZZ 8N -

() ZHRBEELHE-—WaEEELEEEZA
B P 1S 2 A

() REF BECEERAA ([BEL
¥DREBREZESEMA T - B
TCEAAEERBLAEERZARD
Bl #E 5 10% R 90%HE 75 o B okt AX 32
B AEEEE 78 LA ESIRRE - 1Y
EF - B gt E M FEWKIES2,000% ST ET
RRE LR -

k) FRAEEFTZERBE B A
SEAARR—RBRREAZSER
BRFBERFRAZHRER-

() ARAREZRRMEIRB2ESH
EHERNAEETREBRARZHE -

TREAREERQAAEGE

AEERBEREBBETFEREHMT
B AmMAZEREAR ZFERER
BREMSRAR (BREERRER & =@
@)~ EE R RO E IR

TREREERAEEANRE A
ExeETofr-EHESRRARZER
BEREREKERMBRARIERLT -
BRASEPEHZRAERE

RRBENEESRIANFARFLZ
BR e
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities:

TRIEREERER D AMER

(%)

(il

401 EeRMEEREEBEER

REBIRR K2 ZREES &
UTemBEERSRABER:

Group Company
TEE VNN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF Z—EZTTNE CZEB-ZF Z—ZTITNF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET TER FHAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BARERBRRYE
through profit or loss CEBMBE
— Derivative financial —REEETESR
instruments held for trading TA - 698 - -
Loans and receivables ER KW RIA
— Trade receivables — I E 5 FKIE 87,263 22 161 - =
— Amount due from — B —REES KA
a related party and other &
receivables Hth JiE Y R IE 43,105 4,711 - -
- Amounts due from — W EE S 5RIE
related parties 3,825 13,813 - -
— Amount due from — & Wb 188 2 B SR
subsidiaries - - 692,812 711,821
- Pledged bank deposits —BEBRTER 11,348 5,337 3,327 3,327
- Cash and bank balances R RRTER 174,700 71,564 34,647 39
320,241 118,284 730,786 715,187
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. €A EER AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)
40.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 401 cRIEEREEER (&)
(Continued)
Group Company
r5H PN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-%F —TTNF CZB-%BF C—TTNHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT TERT TET

Financial liabilities SREE

Financial liabilities at fair value %2 7 ERE % % 5 R

through profit or loss JERmAR
— Derivative financial ~RBEEENTESR
instruments held for IA
trading 18,469 697 18,469 -
Financial liabilities measured ~ LAZE$ERK A5+ E 2
at amortised cost CHERE
— Trade payables —-ERESHE 20,804 12,943 - =
- Accrued charges and —EERR
other payables H {h fE 1 FUR 38,506 23,201 150 3,996
— Amounts due to — S BAE B
related parties 136 10,601 - -
— Amount due to LG e
subsidiaries - - - 21,148
- Borrowings —f&E 17,663 33,424 - 7,500
- Convertible notes —ABmBRER 64,951 183,668 64,951 183,668

160,529 264,534 83,570 216,312
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. £ REREER A RETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuead) (&
40.2 Foreign currency risk 40.2 ¥R B
Transactions in foreign currencies and the Group’s X R A EEZ RSB
risk management policies x

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from its overseas sales,
which are primarily denominated in US$, Singapore Dollar
(“SGD”), EURO, SF and Taiwan Dollar (“NT$"). These
are not the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries to which these transactions relate. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as

BE¥RERECRIAZAABER
KB oM ERINEE R R B
2R AEEZ E¥ERIRAH
BINEE  TRAETT AN
(¥t ]) ~ BT~ IR I
HeE((Ma®)IE MitE
ERWFARBREZERXSH
BzMBARZHEES - A&
BRI BIMNE SRR AT - &
BESEEMNERR YRBEFE
E BEPERIMNER R -

MoNEFHEZERMEERAES
REERERR B RBTT R

follows: N
2010 2009
—Z-2% g 3
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure

tHEE  ERAR  BARFE  oREE  SRARE  EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL THL TR TR

Uss e 41,080 (206) 40,874 2,097 (3,785) (1,668)
SGD AT - - - 2,485 - 2,485
EURO B 368 (5,740) (5,372) = = =
SF I %5 4,049 (3,199) 850 - - -

NT$ mak - - - 715 - 715
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. €RlEKREER X A EG
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&

dl

(il

40.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 40.2 SNER B (42)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 March 2010 and equity in
regards to a 5% (2009: 5%) appreciation in HK$ against
US$, SGD, EURO, SF and NT$ respectively. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

HEETH

TEREMAAEENEBEE-_T—ZTF
A=t BUHEFEzEERES
HWETHET FMET BT
i TEB R A B 5 R E5%

—ETNF :5%) ZERKE 5%
DRAIMEEEEABEINER
BABHREFRAZILEE  WAER
BHINBEREEZE 2 &EM
gt e

Results for the year
and retained profits

REEEBERRFRERR
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHT
uss$ E7T 1,665 (63)
SGD ¥ T - 93
EURO B 7T (201) =
SF T 0% BB 32 =
NT$ ek - 30

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning of

the financial years and held constant throughout the year.

AEERRE BEE 2SR
BB E 47 LA BT B 46 S 4 2 b
B BRE D BB RS LB
REWBHRERHTE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. €RlEKREER X A EG

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.2

40.3

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against US$, SGD, EURO, SF
and NT$ would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and equity but of opposite effect.

These are the same method and assumption used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the period ended 31 March 2009.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

As the Company does not have significant exposure
to foreign currency risk, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in foreign currency rates.

Interest rate risk

Exposures to interest rate risk and the Group’s risk
management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits (note 26) and
borrowings (note 30) while the Company’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from bank deposits (note 26). The
Group has not used any derivative contracts in order to

hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

(%)

40.2

40.3

161

(il

S EER (&)

BEDH (&)

B ITHETT # N T BT - B
TEBRH A ERESS KBH A
SERAFREz2EXELESRA
MEEHERZEZE-

HENTRRRBE_TTNF=
A=+—H - MM B HREK 2 BE
B DI RAZ I ERBRRER -

SN TE K B & (R B A R 2| A1
RXBZBBMAEMARE - - EEWLL
LD AR B AT KR AR R P
AR 2 SN R o

B R AR Y EA R B RINEE
@ MARB ZWARKELERER

SRATRNGEXRDYE
IELA
AEZFFABRFEE AR
EERE

NMEEBREESRIAZAAER
RenERTHNERE B MK
ZRERR - ARRZHRERERIR
B |17 (M 5E26) REE (4
fE30) - MARAZMEREBREE
REBRITER (M E26) - AKH
WEFERERMITETREA DL
HL 2 [ o AN 5% 18 3 A ) AT B 3R
AR REBRZ BUR o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. €RlEKEER X A EG
(%)

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
40.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2010 to a
possible change in interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2009: +/-
0.5%),
calculations are based on the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities held at the reporting date. All other variables

with effect from the beginning of the year. The

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010

fin

40.3 =@ (&)

BBE DT

TREMASEHEE-_T—TF=
A=+—RALFEZEE@DHA
FNER 2 EEFEEB)+/- 0.5%
—EENF: +/- 0.5%) 2R
B st B ENRE B RS B #
BEZaRmEERABREE -FTH

are held constant. The assumed changes have no HMBEHEFTE - BREFEAN
significant impact on the Company’s other components of NalEm s EMHBo W EERNT
equity. 2o
Results for the year and
retained profits
TFEEEERKREER
Group Company
rEH /NG
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
2010 —E-2F 734 (734) 173 (173)
2009 —ZEENEF 241 (241) 2 )

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to
be reasonably possible based on observation of current
market conditions and represents the management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the period until the next annual reporting date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March 2009 has been
prepared on the same basis.

Rl 2 BREBERTTRBREN
BRRAAEZBERD LRE
EEHBET —EFEREA LD
CHEFEN: L3 DEEAE

BHE_ZZNF=ZA=+—HL
FEZVBHRERII ZHBE S
WrigtaR R ERE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. RiEMEER AAETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

40.4 Credit risk 40.4 =ERK

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. Generally, the maximum
credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position which
are summarised in note 40.1 above. None of the financial
assets of the Group are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements.

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group trades mainly with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
carrying amounts of the trade receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. Further detailed exposure to credit risk of
the Group is disclosed in note 22.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables from these two customers (2009: this
customer) represented about 60% of the Group’s total
trade receivables as at 31 March 2010 (2009: 46%).
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong.

The Company is not exposed to significant concentration
of risk.

SERRESBR TR HFITREE
RESBRTAZ (FHRETEEE:
SARERIPBIERZAR - —
RME ERMEEMARZEKXE
ERRREAWBRRARATZ
TREECEEE ARTREE
B EXCHIEE401 - AEBEZ S
MEEMEBEEBEMmAEME
BRFTEA -

AEEZ2BRITEFAFEAR
FERPEZEERT

AEETEREZREERIKZ
FZNETRS - REAKE 2K
R ERABNAREREETRS
ZEPHAKBEERERRF I
S - AN B TR AR B R IR MR 45
B AmMAKEZZRARYTE
Ko RERE M BARR R AR Z B
BIREZRAESNEERE
ERMEEAAX ZRAEERR -
AEBEEERBR2E-TFER
Bt TF224% 5% o

AEBEEHEFEERR - R
E-TF=RA=+—HB R%ZM™
2EP(ZZEZNF ZEBEP)
ZEWE ZFBAEAEERKE
ZHIRRTEN0% (T NEF:
46% ) - AEBEE B E T H 2 &
mEERREIEUREE-

ARRYREHEAEHZEE
[
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. €RlEKEER X A EG
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&

fin

40.5 Liquidity risk 40.5 FE) M E R

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31
March 2010. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of
the earliest date on when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,

each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.

MBI R BN B RAEETTH
EREEREETZRRER A5H
EAZABEMNENESKARE
BRENRBREREEZ R T
Rk - AEEzBERERBEE
FAGEEERERFNAEKF
NENEREHEERE-

AEEABEEEERMEREA
B EFRALBEEB L ERR
ERANRL - e EEERH

AT AARKERTESRA
BER-_ZE-TF=ZA=+—-HZ
RSB HB BN - HEEEAR
BEZRBEENER AAHARE
BASEARERELERZRT
BHAE -HEREBED HEN
ABEMERE I EERNEB AR
NRZEEHEAR -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. €BRKREE R AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (#&)
40.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 40.5 RE MR (&)
pa ~ = Z= &
The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of ﬁﬁ L\AEE"HEE‘{EZ*HEEEEEQ’FL
the financial liabilities. BRIKE
E
Group ARE
On Less than One year
demand one year or above Total
RER DPR—F —FHUE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHBT FHBT FHBT
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-—ZF
=A=+-—-H
Non-derivative financial FrTESHTA
instruments
Trade payables BN E 23R = 20,804 - 20,804
Accrued charges and [EETB A R E M ER
other payables IR 34,606 = 3,900 38,506
Amounts due to related parties &I B3EH 2 5K IB 136 — = 136
Borrowings EE = 17,663 = 17,663
Convertible notes AR E - - 132,867 132,867
34,742 38,467 136,767 209,976
At 31 March 2009 RZTENF
=A=+—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRHTA
instruments
Trade payables e 2 5 3E - 12,943 - 12,943
Accrued charges and FERT & R I H fth FE £
other payables A 20,706 = 2,495 23,201
Amounts due to related e R 5 5RIA
parties 10,601 - - 10,601
Borrowings BE = 33,424 - 33,424
Convertible notes QYN E 3 - - 207,808 207,808

31,307 46,367 210,303 287,977
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40.

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

40.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

TRIEREERAAENE

(%)

40.5 REMERR (22)

Company PN
On Less than One year
demand one year or above Total
REXR PR—F —FZUL &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2010 R-Z2-FF
=A=+—-H
Non-derivative financial FITESRTA
instruments
Accrued charges fE& & A 150 - - 150
Convertible notes AR E - — 132,867 132,867
150 - 132,867 133,017
Financial guarantees issued BB B RS AR
Maximum amount guaranteed & {RZXEE LR = 11,923 = 11,923
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZNF
=H=7-H
Non-derivative financial FITESRMT A
instruments
Accrued charges e & A 3,996 - - 3,996
Amount due to subsidiaries FE 1 BT /B A AR 21,148 - - 21,148
Borrowings BE - 7,500 - 7,500
Convertible notes AR E R - — 207,808 207,808
25,144 7,500 207,808 240,452
Financial guarantees issued BB ER
Maximum amount guaranteed #E{RZXEE LR - 5,923 - 5,923
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. RiEMEER AAETE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuead) (#&)
40.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the 40.6 RMBERAKRBERZDAAEBETE
statement of financial position

The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7 AEBERHME _ZETNF—A

“Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments” —BAERZEBBMBEREERIET

effective from 1 January 2009. These amendments IR TAZRESE] 2R

introduce a three-level hierarchy for fair value Kot FERTSERANEFERE
measurement disclosures and additional disclosures ZZBERRBEBRIERT
about the relative reliability of fair value measurements. BRI RN EIMNEE AEEEF

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional REEVEMEERNETRERT A

provisions in the amendments to HKFRS 7 and BB Ft W &2 5| R fE

accordingly, no comparatives for the hierarchy for fair AERBEAR BT -

value measurement disclosures have been presented.

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities TXBRAREBEDSERB2IINEH

measured at fair value in the statement of financial BRAKRADAEFEZERE

position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The ENRRE -ZOBRBRIEAES
hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three MEENBEBEZANERERZ
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs ERBAEZBYAI RN $ZF

used in measuring the fair value of these financial assets ERMEENBBEOR=ELN -5

and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following FAAREDS BRI :

levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active - BH—ERBRMETHERE
markets for identical assets and liabilities; ERBBZRE(RKH

)

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included — &A= E& (ER)KE
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or & (WMERITEE)TEEE
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly EXRBEZBAE T
(i.e., derived from prices); and RPN —BEAZRE: &

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not — &R = : 3 3E DA A] BR R T 5
based on observable market data (unobservable BRBRRELEZAEXRARS
inputs). ANE (TR EBRBHAE) ©

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the TREEXRABERMBEARERR

financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is ERUHBANEAEMEBEKX

based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the ZREFAEABERSER-

fair value measurement.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. s REREER A RETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuead) (&)
40.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the 40.6 RMBERAKRBRZAABFE
statement of financial position (Continued) (&)
The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value RZE—ZTF=A=+—HRH
in the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010 BHRAREBEARNBETEZEHME
are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: ERBERANEDERMNDE
A
Group
rEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B — &A= A= &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAET TAET TAET

Assets EE
Derivative financial TEEmT A
instruments = = = =
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial TEeMTA
instruments - 18,469 - 18,469
Company
¥ NN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& Bl — HAI= H A= a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHBT FHBT T FET
Assets BE
Derivative financial TEEemMTA
instruments — = = =
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial TEELmMTA

instruments - 18,469 - 18,469
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. RiEMEER AAETE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuead) (&

40.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the 40.6 RMBERAKRBRZAABFE
statement of financial position (Continued) (&
The derivative financial instruments in the statement HMBRARZITEEMIAS
of financial position are grouped into the Level 2 fair BRANBEIEERBER 2L &
value hierarchy. Where derivatives are traded either on PTETERRZ ST 3550
exchanges or liquid over-the-counter markets, the Group MEEE AEEgERARER2
uses the closing price at the reporting date. Normally, WhmE -—Rms  AKREFLZZ
the derivatives entered into by the Group are not traded METANWENEREMSEE -
on active markets. The fair values of such contracts are BMeENZARBERA—EKER
estimated using a valuation technique that maximizes the AERmiGE AE (ATSEEEXK
use of observable market inputs e.g. market currency and ME) (D) ZmREZHER
interest rates (Level 2). TESEER

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT M. EXEE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is AEBMEAER T EZHERREELE

to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy B EATRRER 2 EARLLE -

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise NERFEEBZRERREBERAL-

shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBBEBELSER A ELLERLER

adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. ERWHEELAE  BERFFARE

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may KEH AEEHARABRNBRRIS 2

adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to RE -MRRFBEEARKEITHRD

shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in MBS - AEE 2 BE  BEHIE

the objectives, policies or processes during the current years. Frif & o
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l

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 41. EXEE (#)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is AEEFRAEAREEL X (BERKES
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated PRIAE RNREE) B IR B AR BT RERTY
as bank loans, overdraft and convertible notes, as shown in RBTER B RIBEREETE -
the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital WERERE M AR A RN BERLEETY
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated ERESBETE WHNEE TR
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the KA AEEZBEEREFEERNBRLE

gearing ratio at a reasonable level. HIHE—(EEEKT L.
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Total debt BESEEE
Borrowings BE 17,663 33,424
Convertible notes MRER 64,951 183,668
82,614 217,092
Total capital BB 869,802 575,494
Total debt to capital ratio BERGEL X 9.5% 37.7%
42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 42, FEHEEE

(@ On 15 April 2010, the Company granted share options @ RZZE—ZTFNATHH ARQF
which are convertible into 154,528,000 ordinary shares BRE—ZTZT_F+HALRABBLE
of the Company of HK$0.002 each in the share capital AR HEET B AT B AR R AR AR
of the Company under the share option scheme by the F1154,528,000% & i% E {£0.002

Company on 7 October 2002. BILZARAIEBR 2 EREE-
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
(Continueqd)

(0)

On 11 March 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a company which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Wong Chun Loong, a key management
personnel of the Company and a relative of Mr. Tong
Kai Lap to dispose of the entire issued shareholding
of Jade Dynasty Multi-media Development Limited
(“JDMM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the loans owed by JDMM to Jade Dynasty Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company at
the aggregate consideration of HK$67 million. Details
of this transaction were set out in the circular to the
shareholders of the Company date 31 March 2010.
Pursuant to Special Annual Meeting held in 20 April 2010,
the transaction was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. The transaction has been completed on 27
April 2010.

171

42, REHEREHE (&)

R=ZZE—ZFF=A+—HB &%
HE-—RBEFEKESL (KXQF
FTEEBANBRERUEEZ
PEB)EREAZRARIGIMY—10
B & % ' M i §Jade Dynasty
Multi-media Development Limited
([UDMM | » RRRIZ 2 BB R
al) 2 BB 1T R R JDMMAE R
FEAZERERAF (AR AZ
ZEMBAR) 2ER #RER
67,000,000/ 7T ° IR 5+ B &
RERA-T—ZEF=A=+—
HEARR AR 2@ EHA - BRER
—E—TEPNA-F+HBETZRK
RERIAE  ZRXRHELALRRT]
BRI - ZRHGER_ZE—ZTF
MAZ+EHTK-
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Financial Summary

RESULTS E

Year ended 31 March
BE=B=1-HLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

“ERAF CTELE SEINE CFTAE C2-%F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT THL THEL TEL T

Revenue g 102,214 102,094 156,726 611,530 1,219,128
Profit/(loss) for the year KABHER A
attributable to the owners of FEAEARFZ

the Company wmH (EE) 13,538 11,370 6,585 (189,969) 113,016

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R=ZA=t+-H

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

SETAF CTERLE CEEINE CFTAE C2-%F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL THL TEL THEL T

Total assets BB E 235,269 271,653 411,777 879,172 1,184,999

Total liabilities BEE (47,106) (24,950) (52,891) (300,221) (311,093)

188,163 246,703 358,886 578,951 873,906
Equity attributable to the owners A A &A1 #EH A

of the Company FE (= 188,163 244,260 351,450 575,494 869,802

Minority interests DB R R = = 2,443 7,436 3,457 4,104

188,163 246,703 358,886 578,951 873,906
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